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THE FEDERAL WORKFORCE RESTRUCTURING
ACT OF 1993

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 1993

U.S. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS,

Washington, DC.
The Committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:43 a.m., in room

SD-342, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. John Glenn, Chair-
man of the Committee, presiding.

Present: Senators Glenn, Pryor, Dorgan, Roth, Stevens, and Ben-
nett.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR GLENN
Chairman GLENN. The hearing will be in order.
We are scheduled to have a vote at 9:45 this morning, but I think

rather than delay we will go ahead because sometimes those get
put back a little bit. We will get our opening statements, as far as
we can go, into the record before we have to vote.

1 welcome everybody to today's hearing on S. 1535, the Federal
Workforce Restructuring Act of 1993. I am pleased to report that
two of my colleagues from the Committee, Senator Pryor and Sen-
ator Stevens, have joined me as original cosponsors of this bill. I
look forward to working with them and other Committee members
on this measure.

I would add that Senator Stevens was particularly sorry he could
not be here this morning. He has a conflict. The DOD appropria-
tions bill is on the floor, and he has to be on the floor with that
this morning. He particularly regretted that, and I regret he is not
here, too, because he has been particularly active in all these areas
regarding civil service Government employees during his whole
time here in the Senate. So he wanted to make sure everyone un-
derstood that he had a conflict this morning and was unavoidably
unable to be here. He does have a statement for the record. We will
enter that in the record and hope that things change over on the
floor. He may be able to join us later for the hearing because his
views on these things are always very insightful and very welcome.

This legislation is an initiative of the Vice President's National
Performance Review. As we all know, one of the goals of NPR is
a leaner and more responsive Federal workforce. The purpose of
this bill is to provide agency heads with downsizing tools and em-
ployee retraining initiatives to cut the fat and build the muscle of
the workforce.

Urider the administration's proposal, agencies could employ vol-
untary separation incentive paymentsvoluntaryto encourage

(1)
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employees to resign or retire from Federal service. In addition, it
would reform current law on the training of Federal employees.
Employee retraining will be increasingly necessary as we seek to
create a multi-skilled Federal workforce, adaptable to changing cir-
cumstances and changing technology.

The administration proposal would allow agencies to offer tar-
geted separation incentivesearly retirement or financial pay-
ments or both to selected groups of employees. The financial pay-
ments would be the lesser of $25,000 or the amount an employee
would be paid in severance pay if their jobs were being abolished.
An agency head could designate components of his or her agency,
particular locations or offices, and/or particular job grades or occu-
pations where separation incentives would be offered.

This latter point is very important because if this bill is enacted,
there are going to be some disappointed Federal employees who
find themselves ineligible for any separation payment. Let me
stress this is not some sort of new benefit for Government workers.
It is meant as a tool to downsize and cut fat from the Federal
workforce.

Hand in hand with the NPR's goal of downsizing is the idea of
making Government more responsive. Under the terms of this leg-
islation, agencies would have the flexibility to retrain Federal em-
ployees for new assignments and expand training programs to in-
clude improving individual and organizational performance.

This morning I hope to examine details related to this proposal.
There are still a number of questions that I would like to get on
the record so we can set the things straight. For example, how do
we ensure that agencies cut the fat and not the muscle? What kind
of guidance will the Office of Management and Budget provide to
agencies in identifying these certain employees? How much will the
legislation cost or save?

Foremost also is addressing something that I think is highly im-
portant and that was pointed out in the report that was put out
on the National Performance Review, "Creating a Government that
Works Better and Costs Less." On page 70 of that, one of the action
items is to change the ratio of managers to employees. Out in the
business world, somewhere around 15 to 25 to 1 is considered a
pretty good ratio of management to employees. The Federal Gov-
ernment is 7 to 1 on the average. And as pointed out on page 70
and the following page, we should be trying to redress that, and
the goal is set out of trying to double that ratio within the next 5
years.

I think we need to explore exactly how this legislation is going
to provide that mechanism of getting there and what the likelihood
is that this will do it, or do we need something else. AB I recall
from the Vice President's statements on this, he was concerned
that you could not do all this just by attrition; that while attrition
rates in the Federal workforce go up and down over a period of
time, sometimes it has been up as high as almost 9 percent per
year, and yet this year it appears to be down around 2.9 or 3 per-
cent, something like that. And so while at the lower levels of em-
ployment, the lower GS levels, attrition can probably do the job for
us with no incentives, at the middle-manager areas, the 13's, 14's,
and 15's, which is where we have some of this over-employment,
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if you will, the question is: Can we change these ratios with this
legislation? That is something I want to address a little bit later
with some questions.

So we have the experience of the Postal Service and the Depart-
ment of Defense to look back on. They have already been through
some of this, and so I hope that we can take lessons learned as
these agencies and apply them to our bill. So I look forward to the
testimony of our witnesses.

PREPARED STATZMILNT OF SENATOR GLENN

Good morning and welcome to today's hearing on S. 1535, the Federal Workforce
Restructuring Act of 1993. I am pleased to report that two of my colleagues from
the Committee, Senator Pryor and Senator Stevens, have joined me as original co-
s nsors of this bill. I look forward to working with Senator Stevens and Senator

or and other Committee members on this measure.
s legislation is an initiative of the Vice President's National Performance Re-

view (NPR). As we all know, one of the goals of NPR is a leaner and more respon-
sive Federal workforce. The purpose of this bill is to provide agency heads with
downsizing tools and employee retraining initiatives to cut the fat and build the
muscle of the workforce.

Under the Administration's proposal, agencies could employ voluntary separation
incentive payments to encourage employees to resign or retire from Federal service.
In addition, it would reform current law on the training of Federal employees. Em-
ployee retraining will be increasingly necessary as we seek to create a multi-skilled
Federal workforce, adaptable to changing circumstances and technology.

The Administration proposal would allow agencies to offer targeted separation in-
centives---early retirement or financial payments or bothto selected groups of em-
ployees. The financial payments would be the lesser of $25,000 or the amount an

iemployee would be paid in severance pay if their jobs were being abolished. An
agency head could designate components of his or her agency, particular locations
or offices, and/or particular job grades or occupations where separation incentives
would be offered.

This latter point is very important because if this bill is enacted, there are going
to be some disappointed Federal employees who find themselves ineligible for any
separation payment. Let me stress that this is not some sort of new benefit for gov-
ernment workers. It is meant as a tool to cut fat from the workforce.

Hand in hand with the NPR's goal of downsizing, is the idea of making govern-
ment more responsive. Under the terms of the legislation, agencies would have the
flexibility to retrain Federal employees for new assignments, and expand training
programs to include improving individual and organizational performance.

This morning, I hope to examine the details related to this proposal. There are
still a number of questions in my mind and I would like to get the record set
straight. For example, how do we ensure that agencies cut the fat and not the mus-
cle? What kind of guidance will the Office of Management and Budget provide to
the agencies in identifying these employees? How much will this legislation cost or
save?

We have the experiences of the Postal Service and the Department of Defense to
look back on. I hope that we can take the lessons learned at these agencies and
apply them to our bill. I look forward to the testimony of our witnesses.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR STEVENS

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for scheduling this hearing ro quickly. As you know,
I am an original cosponsor of S. 1535. It is important, in my estimation, for this
to be a bipartisan effort and for us to all work together so that legislation passed
by the Senate accomplishes the goal of %misting agencies as they streamline the
Federal Government.

Two of our witnesses todayOPM Director Jim King and OMB Deputy Director
for Management Philip Ladercan expect some tough questions. While the basic
idea of this bill has merit, the devil is in the details.

It is important that we have a representative from the Department of Defense
with us today because DOD was the guinea pigthis proposal is the natural pro-
gession of legislation which was enacted last year to minimize civilian layoffs at
the Department of Defense. From all accounts, the flexibility we provided has
proved to be invaluable to both management and employees.
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There can be no misunderstandingwe are not creating an employee entitlement.
Agency heads must retain the authority and discretion to offer the incentives in spe-
cific locations or job classifications or whatever combination best suits the particular
agency. However, once management makes the decision about eligibility, employees
must exercise great care in making the decision to accept this offer.

Mr. Chairman, while I still have some reservations about particular provisions of
this bill, it is my hope that we will be able to work together to fine tune this pro-
posal. I dc, support this bill's basic concept: giving agencies the tools needed to reach
a goal voluntary Federal workforce reduction to meet budgetary constraints.

Chairman GLENN. With that we will open with Mr. King. We
welcome you, Jim. He is the Director of the Office of Personnel
Management. We also have Philip Lader, Deputy Director for Man-
agement, Office of Management and Budget, OMB, and Ed Dorn,
Assistant Secretary for Personnel and Readiness of the Department
of Defense. So we have three highly qualified people this morning
as our witnesses.

Jim, if you would lead off, we would appreciate it.

TESTIMONY OF JAMES B. KING, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF
PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT

Mr. KING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I want to thank

you for the opportunity to appear before your Committee today to
discuss the administration's legislative proposal, S. 1535.

Chairman GLENN. Pull that mike up real close to you. These are
very directional mikes.

Mr. KING. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is flattering
to think someone might be listening.

The bill, S. 1535, was introduced in the Senate by yourself, Mr.
Chairman, and cosponsored by Senators Pryor and Stevens and
Senator Warner. I commend your Committee for its prompt consid-
eration of this very important legislation, and I am here today to
explain the administration's vital need for these management tools.

As you know, the President's National Performance Review has
recommended, in line with the goal of re oving from red tape to re-
sults to create a Government that works better and costs less, that
the size of the Federal workforce be reduced. In order to minimize
the impact of meeting this need, the President has proposed great-
er flexibilities in the training of Government employees and au-
thorization for Federal agencies to pay voluntary separation incen-
tives to those employees who choose voluntary retirement or res-
ignation.

First, let me address the Government's new emphasis on train-
ing. Commitments to shift resources from management control to
customer service, reduce supervisory and managerial layers, and
other planned changes, will have a significant impact on Federal
agencies and employees. Many employees will change jobs and,
therefore, will have to be retrained to perform their new respon-
sibilities. Therefore, employee retraining will be increasingly nec-
essary as we seek to create a multi-skilled workforce suited to rap-
idly changing technology. Greater flexibility in training will be es-
sential to accomplishing this.

So that the Federal Government is better positioned to carry out
its many critical missions during and following the implementation
of the National Performance Review recommendations, restrictions

Ct
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on the training of Government employees must be reformed. The
President's proposal removes unnecessary and narrow restrictions
on employee training. We propose to use training to advance both
the employee's performance and organizational mission accomplish-
ment. In addition, this policy will benefit the Government by creat-
ing an environment more conducive to meeting agency goals and
missions.

Further, we propose to make available the most cost-efficient and
-effective training available, whether offered by the Government or
the non-government sector or private sector, by removing current
restrictions on the use of private sector training courses.

Now let me turn to the need for voluntary separation incentives.
Agency heads currently have a range of tools and incentives to as-
sist them in restructuring their workforce. Depending on the par-
ticular needs of the organization, they may rely on normal attrition
and, when authorized by OPM, early retirement to reach lower em-
ployment levels.

Normal attrition rates have recently fallen each year from a high
of 8.7 per 100 employees in fiscal year 1987 to a low of only 2.9
per 100 employees in fiscal year 1993. In the last 3 years, fewer
eligible employees have elected to retire under the voluntary early
retirement option. For example, from 1983 through 1988, approxi-
mately 17 percent of eligible employees actually retired. This figure
has declined to less than 5 percent in both fiscal years 1991 and
1992. Clearly, some inducement is needed to reverse this trend.

As a last resort, agencies may use involuntary separations
through reduction in force, better known as RIF. However, another
more humane option is possible. Voluntary separation incentives,
or buyouts, have proven very effective in reducing employment lev-
els at the Department of Defense, where such payments were au-
thorized under the National Defense Authorization Act of 1993.
Similar authority has been enacted for the Central Intelligence
Agency and for legislative branch agencies. Currently, bills to give
such authority to the National Aeronautics and Space Administra-
tion, the U.S. Forest Service, and foreign service agencies are pend-
ing in the Congress. Other Government agencies now also have an
urgent need for this tool to enable them to restructure.

No one now doubts that the deep budget reductions envisioned
by the President and the Congress will result in significant person-
nel cuts in the Federal workforce. The legislation that we are dis-
cussing today will help to achieve these necessary personnel reduc-
tions in the most humane way possibleby providing incentives to
employees who voluntarily choose to retire or resign in exchange
for a cash incentive. While it is too early to predict whether reduc-
tions in force, RIF's, would be necessary even with the use of vol-
untary separation incentives, there is no doubt that RIF's would be
unavoidable, would ix totally unavoidable, without the voluntary
separations this legislation will produce.

In order to reduce Federal personnel levels with minimal disrup-
tion and financial hardship to employees and their families, Fed-
eral agencies would be authorized to pay a voluntary separation in-
centive to employees who retire or resign during a 3-month "win-
dow." And I would like to think that would be up to 3 months, Mr.
Chairman, not a fixed 90-day period. The amount of the voluntary
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separation incentive is the amount the employee would be entitled
to receive as severance pay, or $25,000,-. whichever is less. This is
the same amount that has been provided in the DOD and other
congressionally authorized separation incentive programs that I
cited earlier.

The 90-day window during which employees would be able to
elect to leave and receive the incentive will be designated by each
agency head and may occur at any time between the date of enact-
ment of this legislation through September 30, 1994.

Eligible employees would be those who have a permanent ap-
pointment and at least 1 full year of service. Re-employed annu-
itants and those eligible for disability retirement would be ex-
cluded.

Agency heads would designate components of agencies, occupa-
tions, particular geographic locations, et cetera, where separation
incentives would be offered. The administration would expect agen-
cy heads to obtain approval from the Office of Management and
Budget, OMB, of their plans for use of the voluntary separation in-
centives. Agencies would have the authority to delay separations of
particular employees for whom separation incentives have been au-
thorized for up to 2 years after the end of the 90-day window where
necessary to ensure the performance of the agency's mission.

To ensure that the voluntary separation incentives produce ac-
tual cuts in staffing levels, employment in the executive branch
would be reduced by not less than 1 full-time equivalent position
for each two separation incentives paid. I want to stress the vol-
untary nature of this program. Employees may not be coerced to
leave against their wishes. Under implementing regulations that
OPM will issue, agencies may not use any personal basis to grant
or deny an incentive to any individual employee.

S. 1535 would require the full repayment of the separation incen-
tive by the recipient if she or he is re-employed by the Federal Gov-
ernment within 5 years of separation. This requirement could be
waived in exceptional circumstances related to difficulty in recruit-
ing. The bill also extends this repayment obligation to those receiv-
ing voluntary separation incentives under the DOD and CIA pro-
grams.

We envision the widespread use of the voluntary early retire-
ment authority in conjunction with the separation incentives. Cur-
rent law requires agencies to obtain the approval of OPM to offer
their employees early retirement. To assure the complementary use
of early retirements with separation incentives, OPM will adopt
new procedures to facilitate agency requests and flexibility in their
use. This will include matching the effective dates of early retire-
ment authority with the separation incentives window.

These voluntary separation incentives would be fully funded from
the agencies' existing appropriations. To make them cost-effective
in fiscal year 1994, the incentives need to be available as early at;
possible in this fiscal year. More significantly, separations resulting
from the payment of incentives are expected to produce substantial
savings in fiscal year 1995, helping agencies to reach that year's
budget reduction targets.

A final feature of this legislation would rectify a long-standing
problem for the Civil Service Retirement Systemand that is
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CSRS, as you know, Mr. Chairmannamely, the "underfunding" of
early retirements. The current annuity reduction of 2 percent for
each year the retiree is under age 55 is insufficient to cover the
added costs to the system of the early retirement. Our proposal
would require agencies to pay a one-time additional charge of 9
percent of the employee's final annual salary for each employee
who retires early under CSRS. The 9-percent charge is based on
the actual experience in paying annuities to early retirees in the
Civil Service Retirement System for the years 1975 through 1989.
The model used to evaluate this cost is the standard actuarial
model that OPM uses for all retirement purposes. We are confident
that this is the correct adjustment and will, over time, correct the
underfunding situation. This would be a permanent change in law
and would apply to all future CSRS early retirements.

The administration urges Congress to enact S. 1535 as soon as
possible, and I would personally like to thank you for this oppor-
tunity to present our views on this important legislation. I would
be more than pleased to respond to any questions that the Commit-
tee might have.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF JAMES B. KING

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:
Thank you for the opportunity to appear before your committee today to discuss

the administration's legislative proposal, S. 1535, introduced in the Senate by Chair-
man Glenn, and cosponsored by Senators Pryor, Stevens, and Warner. I commend
your committee for its prompt consideration of this very important legislation and
am here today to explain the administration's vital need for these management
tools.

As you know, the President's National Performance Review has recommended, in
line with the goal of moving from red tape to results to create a government that
works better and costs less, that the size of the Federal workforce be reduced. In
order to minimize the impact of these changes, the President has proposed greater
flexibilities in the training of government employees and authorization for Federal
agencies to pay voluntary separation incentives to those employees who choose vol-
untary retirement or resignation.

First, let me address the government's new emphasis on training. Commitments
to shift resources from management control to customer service, reduce supervisory
and managerial layers, and other planned reorganizations, will have a significant
impact on Federal agencies and employees. Many employees will change jobs and
have to be retrained to perform their new responsibihties. Therefore, employee re-
training will be increasingly necessary as we seek to create a multi-skilled
workforce suited to rapidly changing technology. Greater flexibility in training will
be essential to accomplishing this.

So that the Federal Government is better positioned to carry out its many critical
missions during and following the implementation of the National Performance Re-
view recommendations, restrictions on the training of government employees must
be reformed. The President's proposal removes unnecessary and narrow restrictions
on employee training. We propose to use training to advance both the employee's
performance and organizational mission accomplishment. In addition, this policy
will benefit the government by creating an environment more conducive to meeting
agency goals and missions.

Further, we propose to make available the most cost-efficient and effective train-
ing available, whether offered by the government or the private sector, by removing
the current restrictions on the use of private sector training sources.

Now, let me turn to the need for voluntary separation incentives. Agency heads
currently have a range of tools and incentives to assist them in restructuring their
workforce. Depending on the particular needs of the organization, they may rely on
normal attrition, and, when authorized by OPM, early retirement to reach lower em-
ployment levels.

Normal attrition rates have recently fallen each year from a high of 8.7 per 100
employees in fiscal year 1987 to a low of only 2.9 per 100 employees in fiscal year
1993. In the past three years, fewer eligible employees have elected to retire under
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the voluntary early retirement option. For example, from 1983 through 1988, ap-
proximately 17 percent of eligible employees actually retired. This figure has de-
clined to less than 5 percent in both fiscal years 1991 and 1992. Clearly, some in-
ducement is needed to reverse this trend.

As a last resort, agenda' may use involuntary separations through reduction in
force (RIF). However, another more humane option is possible. Voluntary separation
incentives, or buyouts, have proven very effective in reducing employment levals at
the Department of Defense (DOD), where such payments were authorized under the
National Defense Authorization Act of 1993. Similar authority has been enacted for
the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA) and for legislative branch agencies. Currently,
bills to give such authority to the National Aeronautics and Space Administration,
the U.S. Forest Service, and foreign service agencies are pen in in the Congress.
Other government agencies now also have an urgent need for this tool to enable
them to restructure.

No one now doubts that the deep budget reductions envisioned by the President
and the Congress will result in significant personnel cuts in the Federal workforce.
The legislation that we are discussing today will help to achieve these necessary
personnel reductions in the most humane way possibleby providing incentives to
employees who voluntarily choose to retire or resign in exchange for a cash incen-
tive. While it is too early to predict whether reductions in force (RWa) would be nec-
essary even with the use of voluntary separation incentives, there is no doubt that
Ws would be unavoidable without the voluntary separations this legislation will
produce.

In order to reduce Federal personnel levels with minimal disruption and financial
hardship to employees and their families, Federal agencies would be authorized to
pay a voluntary separation incentive to employees who retire or resign during a
three-month 'window." The amount of the voluntary separation incentive is the
amount the employee would be entitled to receive as severance pay, or $25,000,
whichever is less. This is the same amount that has been provided in the DOD and
other cong essionally authorized separation incentive programs cited earlier.

The 90-day window during which employees would be able to elect to leave and
receive the incentive will be designated by each agency head and may occur at any
time between the date of enactment of this legislation through September 30, 1994.

Eligible employees would be those who have a permanent appointment and at
least 1 full year of service. Reemployed annuitants and those eligible for disability
retirement would be excluded.

Agency heads would designate components of agencies, occupations, particular ge-
ographic locations, etc., where separation incentives would be offered. The adminis-
tration would expect agency heads to obtain approval from the Office of Manage-
ment and Budget (014013) of their plans for use of the voluntary separation incen-
tives. Agencies would have the authority to delay separations of particular employ-
ees, for whom separation incentives have been authorized, for up to two years after
the end of the 90-day window where necessary to ensure the performance of the
agency's mission.

To ensure that the voluntary separation incentives produce actual cuts in staffing
levels, employment in the executive branch would be reduced by not leas than one
full-time equivalent position for each two separation incentives paid. I want to today
stress the voluntary natvre of this program. Employees may not be coerced to leave
against their wishes. Ur Ir implementing regulations that OPM will issue, agencies
may not use any persons: basis to grant or deny an incentive to any individual em-
ployee.

S. 3515 would require the full repayment of the separation incentive by the recipi-
ent if he or she is reemployed by the Federal Government within 5 years of separa-
tion. This requirement could be waived in exceptional circumstances related to dif-
ficulty in recruiting. The bill also extends his repayment obligation to those receiv-
ing voluntary separation incentives under the DOD and CIA programs.

We envision the widespread use of the voluntary early retirement authority in
conjunction with the separation incentives. Current law requires agencies to obtain
the approval of OPM to offer their employees early retirement. To assure the com-
plementary use of early retirements with separation incentives, OPM will adopt new
procedures to facilitate agency requests and flexibility in their use. This will include
matching the effective dates of the early retirement authority with the separation
incentives window.

These voluntary separation incentives would be fully funded from agencies' exist-
ing appropriations. To make them cost effective in fiscal year 1994, the incentives
need to be available as early as possible in this fiscal year. More significantly, sepa-
rations resulting from the payment of incentives are expected to produce substantial
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savings in fiscal year 1995, helping agencies to reach that year's budget reductiontargets.

A final feature of this legislation would rectify a long-standing problem for theCivil Service Retirement System (CSRS), namely the "underfundin.," of early retire-ments. The current annuity reduction of 2 percent for each year 4lie retiree is underage 55 is insufficient to cover the added coats to the system of the early retirement.Our proposal would require agencies to pay a one-time additional charge of 9 per-cent of the employee's final annual salary for each employee who retires early underCSRS. The 9 percent charge is based on the actual experience in paying annuitiesto early retirees in the Civil Service Retirement System for the years 1975 through1989. The model used to evaluate this cost is the standard actuarial model thatOPM uses for all retirement purposes. We are confident that this is the correct ad-justment and will, over time, correct the underfunding situation. This would be apermanent change in law and would apply to all ful.ure CSRS early retirements.The Administration urges Congress to enact S. 1535 as soon as possible. Thankyou for this opportunity to present OPM's views on this important legislation. Iwould be pleased to answer any questions the committee may have.
Chairman GLENN. Thank you, Mr. King. The lights on the clockin the back of the room back there indicate I have just a few min-utes to get to the floor and vote. So we will stand in temporary re-cess momentarily.
Mr. KING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
(Recess.]

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR ROTH
Senator Rom. (Presiding.] We will proceed with the openingstatements. The Chairman will be back briefly.The Federal Government is both broke and broken. To remedythat, Government must improve its productivity. The first step inimproving productivity is to become able to measure performance,and we have taken that step with the enactment of S. 20 last July.But many other steps remain to be taken to increase the Govern-ment's productivity. Among them is to streamline and reorganizethe bureaucracy so that the Government can do more with less. Ihave long been a champion of efforts such as S. 797 to downsizethe Federal bureaucracy by offering employees an opportunity forearly retirement. Moreover, I am in full agreement with the gen-eral philosophy of the Vice President's National Performance Re-view that we need to reinvent the Federal workforce.After all the years of working virtually alone to create a Federalworkforce for the modern age, I am pleased to find myself in suchdistinguished company. So it is with considerable reluctance thatI state my concern with the first of the NPR proposals to come be-fore this Committee.

I am concerned that the proposal before us today is insufficientlyconnected to any clear plan for implementing a reinvention of theFederal Government. At the very least, it seems to come to us tooearly in the proper sequencing of reforms. This bill follows a Presi-dential memorandum to agency heads last month entitled "Stream -lining the Bureaucracy." By December 1st, each agency is to pro-pose a plan for cutting in half the ratio of managers and super-visors to other personnel. They are also to propose greater decen-tralization, delegation of authority, and personal accountability forperformance.
The problem is that these worthy objectives cannot be fullyachieved without legislationlegislation which we have not yeteven beg,' n. to consider. What will be the impact, for instance, of
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cutting in half the number of Federal managers if our management

and personnel laws remain unreformed? Can we presume that leg-
islation we have yet to see will be enacted? An even more basic

problem with this legislation is that, for all its presumed intent, it
does not actually mandate a reduction in the size of the Federal
workforce. Even if if resulted in the full goal of 52,000 people leav-

ing Federal employment, nothing in this bill and nothing in current

law prohibits these positions from being refilled immediately.
Clearly this is a major problem with the bill.

In other words, we could end up spending a great deal of money

encouraging a large number a early retirements and still not have

achieved significant downsizing. And if we did achieve the
downsizing, Government performance could worsen because other
reforms were not in place.

Some have expressed concern that the legislation in its present
form might be used primarily to eliminate and replace dead wood

or perhaps even used on a partisan level to eliminate so-called liv-

ing Republican wood. These objectives were not mentioned, of

course, in the National Performance Review.
I am also troubled by the large price tag associated with this pro-

posal$674 million over the next 3 years, according to the Con-

gressional Budget Office. Now, these moneys fall under the pay-as,-

you-go budget rules which say that other spending will have to be

cut or taxes raised to pay for this bill. Well, how will this be paid

for? I do, however, applaud the Senate version of the bill which has
increased the period of time from 2 to 5 years for anyone taking
the buyout to not be re-employed by the Federal Government. The
administration proposal and House version contains a 2-year prohi-

bition on re-employment. In my judgment, this is inadequate.
Now, one of the goals of the NPR is to give greater flexibility to

managers to promote efficiency in their agencies. In its current
form, the bill does not contain criteria for agency heads to follow

in administering the incentive program. I do understand that OMB
would have to approve the agency's requested incentive. However,

I believe a set of guiding principles for agency heads should be es-

tablished prior to administering the incentive programs.
It seems to me that we are being asked to grant a tool to a build-

er before the builder has had the benefit of reviewing the blueprint
for the structure under construction. Last week, in testimony be-

fore the House Post Office and Civil Service Subcommittee, OPM

predicted that between 60,000 to 100,000 people would volunteer to

take the buyout. CBO estimated that about 54,000 people would

participate. I am eager to hear this morning how the administra-

tion plans to downsize after the completion of the incentive pro-

gram to achieve the goal of 252,000.
We will recess until the return of the Chairman.
[Pause.]
Senator ROTH. We will continue to proceed with the testimony.

I believe, Mr. King, you have given your testimony.
Mr. KING. Yes, Senator.
Senator Rom. Mr. Lader, are you next?
Mr. LADER. Yes, sir.
Senator Rom. Please proceed.

14
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TESTIMONY OF MEM` LADER, DEPUTY DIRECTOR FOR
MANAGEMENT, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

Mr. LADER. Thank you very much, sir. Let me ask that my pre-
viously submitted statement be entered in the record, and let me
speak more informally.

As you know from my confirmation hearings, I have spent my ca-
reer in the private sector. People often ask what are the biggest
surprises I have had in these last 9 or 10 months in Government
service. One of the biggest surprises I have had is the quality of
the Federal workforce.

Senator Rom. Would you pull your microphone a little closer,
please? Thank you.

Mr. LADER. I have been tremendously impressed over the last 9
or 10 months with the remarkable number of hard-working, very
savvy, smart Federal employees.

Senator Rom. Could I just interrupt there? I want to underscore
what you just said. Sometimes I think that is under-appreciated in
the private sector. We do have many, many excellent people in the
Federal Government, and I am happy to hear you make that point.

Mr. LADER. That is my first theme.
The second theme is this: If all of us are seeking to undertake

reforms in our Federal Government resulting in the NPR spirit and
a government that works better and costs less, we look to private
sector reforms for initiatives that have worked and see where we
can model some of our efforts after the private sector's. The legisla-
tion under discussion today is very much driven by private sector
models.

I want to express my particular appreciation to the Chairman for
introducing this bill and for assuring its prompt consideration, and
to Senator Stevens for cosponsoring the bill, to Senator Pryor for
his pioneering work in separation incentive programs. And I want
to thank you, Senator, for the work in initiating S. 20 because per-
formance measurement really is part of what this bill is all about
as well.

You used the analogy of a builder undertaking an effort without
any blueprints. What we are concerned about is that, in the con-
struction of the reforms in the Federal Government, we do not have
a cookie-cutter approach whereby we are requiring that this con-
glomerate of conglomerates we call the Federal Government, so
vast in size, has to follow Kremlin-like rules and specifications
handed down by Congress or OMB as to how to get the job done.
Consistent with your vision in the Government Performance and
Results Act, we are seeking to lay out the vision, as the Vice Presi-
dent did in his symbolic and very substantive leadership of the Na-
tional Performance Reviewbut then from that vision to have a
variety of tools provided to the Government managers, the people
who are running the departments, to implement these reforms,
holding them accountable for performancecoming back to the
theme of the legislation to which you devoted so much time.

The buyout is a proven tool in the private sector to reduce the
size of organizations in a way that is effective for the organization's
ongoing mission. By increasing voluntary separations and promot-
ing retraining, an equally important part of this legislation, I as-
sure you, we expect to minimize the need for layoffs, which can be
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incredibly expensive and very disruptive if we are treating citizens
increasingly as customers. We believe that the morale impact of
that would be very telling.

Under the National Performance Review, right-sizing the Federal
workforce is not just rhetoric; it is an imperative. We believe that
we can get greater results through employees who are more em-
powered to make decisions, to hold them accountable for measured
performance, but at the same time reducing the many duplicative
layers of supervision.

This voluntary separation incentive proposal is but one of a very
broad range of administrative actions following the National Per-
formance Review. You asked, Senator, why is this the first? As you
are well aware, there have been more than a dozen Executive Or-
ders and memoranda issued by the President to implement rec-
ommendations of the National Performance Review. And so from
the vision set by the Vice President, we have a seriesa specific,
orderly rolloutof measures of which this combined retraining and
buyout package is merely one.

On September 11th this year, the President directed all depart-
ments and agencies to develop a streamlining plan that addresses
this downsizing. The President's goal in that order is to reduce the
size of the Federal workforce, as you know, by 252,000 individuals.
That encompassed the 100,000 already envisioned in his Executive
Order earlier this year.

Now, if you look at Sears Roebuck, Ford Motor Company, Gen-
eral Motors, Salomon Brothers, across the board in the private sec-
tor, buyouts have been a very effective tool if there is adequate per-
formance measurement and also adequate management discretion
to decide how those buyouts shall be applied. And that is why the
guidance for the crafting of this program, in which OPM played the
most significant role, really focuses on how to hold the agencies ac-
countable: no new coststhere is no separate pool of money; they
must use funds within their current budgets under the caps of the
Budget Enforcement Act. These are not additional costs. What the
agencies must decide is better use of money for specific programs,
for continuing employment, or to use some of that same money for
a buyout incentive to help right-size the workforce.

You raised a concern about whether there will be more employ-
ees or the same number of employees after this Fedei :I expendi-
ture. I mentioned already that it is not an additional rixpenditure;
it is money already within their budget. But, secondly, by the re-
quirement that Director King has already mentioned, for every two
buyouts only one individual can be replaced. We believe that there
is a very significant net decrease in employment

You could raise the question, well, why then have any replace-
ment factor? This is not simply downsizing. This is an effort to
streamline and to right-size. Consequently, certain departments or
agencies may have a surfeit, an abundance of individuals in a par-
ticular job category, but have a critical need for employment, addi-
tional employment, in other job categories. This allows the individ-
ual agency manager, with great management discretion, to reduce
two positions here but, if necessary, add back no more than one po-
sition over here if it is a critical need in this agency or department.
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We believe as part of the comprehensive management improve-
ment to the Federal Government that this is a very effective means
to right-size in the context of the proper roles and missions of the
respective agencies. We hope this can be done in a less disruptive
way than reductions in force.

Another reference: On October 8th of this year, OMB Director
Panetta wrote to all agencies asking for expedited action on the
streamlining plan. You raised in your statement concern as to
whether there will be adequate OMB review. You are correct in ob-
serving that, before any of these buyouts can be administered or
applied, the plan must be approved by us at OMB. But let me sug-
gest that there has been a very significant change in tone of the
guidance provided by OMB to the agencies because, in that October
8th directive, Director Panetta said, "In preparing your plan,"
speaking to the Secretaries in the Cabin3t and the agency Direc-
tors, "you should refer to the President's memorandum and to the
recommendations of the National Performance Review for guid-
ance. These include closing or consolidating field offices, reducing
management layering, fuller use of new technology, reducing regu-
lation and red tape in areas such as personnel, procurement, budg-
eting, internal management, and enhanced employee training and
cross-training."

You will note, unlike some former OMB directives, this is not
saying this is the specific plan, dot this "i," cross this "t," but it is
providing the general guidance of where the agencies should look
to accomplish this. The agencies prepare and submit to us by No-
vember 1 their plans, and then in a dialogue with the agencies on
the President's behalf, we at the Office of Management and Budget
will determine the right mix of this right-sizing. I would contend
to you, Senator, that there is a very specific plan requirement be-
fore the agencies can use these buyouts.

In our view, we need this legislation. It is necessary to increase
voluntary turnover, given the fact that attrition and retirements
lre at near-historic low levels. We need this to reduce the impedi-
n..ints to retraining, to have training opportunities similar to the
private sector. And as has been reported, the Department of De-
fense has successfully used similar buyout authority to such an ex-
tent to accomplish its goals.

In conclusion, the Administration very strongly supports adop-
tion of this proven approach based on private sector experience and
urges the Congress to enact S. 1535 as soon as possible.

Thank you very much, sir.
PREPARED STATEMENT OF PHILIP LADER

Mr. Chairman, let me thank you for the invitation to testify on behalf of the Ad-
ministration's proposal for a voluntary separation incentive. I want to express par-
ticular appreciation to you, Mr. Chairman, for introducing S. 1535 and acting to as-
sure its prompt consideration, to Senator Stevens for co-sponsoring the bill, and to
Senator Pryor whose pioneering work in separation incentives programs laid the
foundation for this important initiative.

As you know, this is one of the recommendations of the Vice President's National
Performance Reviewto provide a proven tool to assist in accomplishing many of
the NPR recommendations. It will provide a cost-effective way to increase voluntary
turnover so that reforms can be implemented more readily. By increasing voluntary
separations and promoting retraining, we expect to minimize the need for layoffs
reductions in force. We all agree that resort to involuntary separations, under cur-
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rent law and procedures, is an extremely disruptive, costly, and morale-breaking
process to be avoided.

Before addressing this specific proposal, let me emphasize that what we are
about, in the words of the National Performance Review Report's title, is "creating
a Government that works better and costs less." This is more than just rhetoric; it
is an imperative. As the report highlights, we must cut the red tape; we must put
the customer first; we have to get results through empowered employees; and we
must commit to more than a piecemeal approach to reform. There needs to be a
long-term commitment to change the way Government works.

The voluntary separation incentive proposal is but one of a broad range of admin-
istrative and legislative actions required to make the vision articulated in the NPR
report reality. As the President has said repeatedly since he first announced the Na-
tional Performance Review, we want to achieve real change, not just produce an in-
teresting report. That change will undoubtedly require a smaller Federal workforce.
S. 1535 is designed to give Federal managers a set of tools to help them restructure.

On September 11, 1993, the President directed all departments and agencies to
develop a streamlining plan that addressed issues raised by the NPR. The Preei-
dent's expectation is that one of the results of NPR management reforms will be
to reduce the size of the Federal workforce. The 252,000 reduction identified by the
NPR encompassed the already announced three-year reduction by 100,000 and
planned DOD downsizing. Beyond that, however, the President called on the agen-
cies to streamline their organizations by delayering reducing the ranks of middle-
managers and supervisors. NPR also pointed to bloated headquarters operations, re-
dundant field offices, and the potential for cutting staff in personnel, procurement,
and other administrative areas as opportunities for staff reductions. Beyond that,
re-engineered basic work processes should result in personnel savings. Reductions
will come from implementation of the streamlining plans, not by across-the-board
cuts.

To meet the downsizing objectives, tl-a agency streamlining plans must first iden-
tify organizations, structures, occupations, and processes that will be affected. It is
through the planning for a reformed and improved Government that an agency will
identify the categcnes of personnel most needed for mission accomplishment rind
those surplus in the reformed structure. With targeted use of the proposed vol-
untary separation incentive or buyouts and retraining, we hope to make the stream-
lining process less disruptive to agency operations, more cost-effective to implement,
and mmimize the need to take reduction-in-force actions. In this fiscal year, with
speedy enactment, we would hope to jump-start the streamlining process and incur
savings beginning in 1995 and beyond.

On October 8, 1993, Director Panetta wrote to all agencies asking for expedited
action on tea streamlining plans. He asked that preliminary plans be submitted to
OMB by November 1 so that this planning could be better integrated with develop-
ment of the President's Fiscal Year 1995 B:udget. The final agency plans should be
completed by the President's requested date of De..:ember 1.

Agency use of the buyout authority, as we indicat would be subject to OMB
approval of a plan for its use. That plan is the streamLeing plan called for in Direc-
tor Panetta's October 8 letters. We are preparing further guidance for the agencies'
development of their plans, but expect that most agencies can readily proceed now
based on their already intimate knowledge of their missions and customers, and
aided by the findings and recommendations of the NPR.

We need the proposed legislation to increase voluntary turnover and ---lduce im-
pediments to retraining. As has been reported, DOD has successfully used similar
buyout authority to such an extent that the need for reductions-in-force procedir es
have been minimized.

The Administration strongly supports adoption of this proven approach and urges
the Congress to enact S. 1635 as soon as possible.

I will be pleased to answer any questions you may have. Thank you.

Chairman GLENN. Thank you, Mr. Lader.
Before we go to Mr. Dorn, Senator Dorgan, do you have any

opening statement you wanted to make before we go to Mr. Dorn?
Senator DORGAN. Mr. Chairman, I will just wait until I have a

question. Thank you very much.
Chairman GLENN. Fine. Thank you very much.
I would like to also enter in the record without objection Senator

Sasser's opening statement in addition to that which I already put
in for Senator Stevens.

1 d
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR SASSER

Good morning, Mr. Chairman. Allow me to join you in welcoming this morning
our distinguished witnesses, Jim King, the Director of the Office of Personnel Man-
agement; Philip Lader of the Office of Management and Budget; and Edwin Dorn
of the Department of Defense.

Let me say that I am pleased that you and the other sponsors of S. 1535, Senators
Stevens, Pryor, and Warner, have acted this promptly by mtroducing the legislation
requested by the administration, and by holding this early hearing. The downsizing
of a large workforce, like the Federal civilian employee roster, always poses serious
issues of fairness and haraship. this is especially true as we begin to work our way
out of last year's recession.

Fortunately, ie have some experience to guide us, in the early retirement and
voluntary separation incentives authorized for the Defense Department in last
year's authorizations bill. Understand that the implementation of this authority has
resulted in significant reductions in the defense work force, in light of the winding
down of the cold war, with meaningful retraining opportunities available for remain-
ing workers to insure that vital tasks continue to be performed. Now, the Vice Presi-
dent's Performance Review has recommended extending this concept to the rest of
the Federal workforce.

In line with the administration's proposal, S. 1535 carries out this mandate. At
the same time, it incorporates safeguards against re-employment that might confer
windfalls on once-retired employees. The bill also seeks to correct the ongoing dif-
ficulty of underfunding of the retirement system, by institutionalizing agency pay-
ments to the fund for each employee who avails himself or herself of the retirement
option.

It is indeed gratifying to witness early bipartisan support for carrying out the rec-
ommendations of the Vice President's commission. We should continue to cooperate
with the administration to see that in the President's words, this does not become
one more report that "stays on the shelf." I again commend the committee for hold-
ing this prompt hearing. I hope that it is but the first of many hearings within the
committee's purview which will advance our shared goal of "reinventing govern-
ment."

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman GLENN. Mr. Dorn, welcome this morning.
Senator Rant. First, Mr. Chairman, could we welcome Mr. Ben-

nett who has just joined our Committee. We are delighted to have
him on the minority side, as I know you are on the majority. I
think his experience and background will enable him to contribute
mightily to this Committee's work. It is nice to have him.

Chairman GLENN. I did not mean to ignore him. I did not see
him walk in here. Do you have any statement you wanted to make
before we go on?

Senator BENNETT. No, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate
the opportunity to be here. I am going to have to slip out to an-
other Comr iittee and vote, but f will try to get back when I finish
that. I look forward to the testimony we are going to receive.

Chairman GLENN. Fine. Thank you.
Mr. Dorn, we welcome your testimony. Mr. Dorn is Assistant Sec-

retary for Personnel and Readiness, Department of Defense.

TESTIMONY OF EDWIN DORN, ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR
PERSONNEL AND READINESS, DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
Mr. DoRN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Commit-

tee. I am delighted to appear today to talk about the Defense De-
partment's brief, but so far encouraging, experience with the sepa-
ration program. Mr. Chairman, you and other members of this
Committee were highly instrumental in giving us the tools we
needed to effect a downsizing that is going to work very sensibly
in terms of our management needs, but also sensitively in terms
of our ability to watch out for the welfare of our people, those who
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are remaining on the workforce, as well as those who are leaving.
So I am very grateful to you, Mr. Chairman, to other members of
the Committee, and to members of your staff for supporting us in
this effort in passing separation pay incentive as part of the 1993
Defense authorization.

You authorized that program almost exactly a year ago. In early
April of this year, Secretary Aspin told the Department to begin
using those authorities very aggressively, and I want to explain
how we go about doing it.

There are three circumstances or three reasons we use our sepa-
ration incentives. One is to avoid reduction in force, which, as Mr.
King mentioned, is a very blunt instrument, indeed, when it comes
to reducing the size of the force. Second, we use it to find other
placements for people who have been scheduled for separation.
And, third, as Mr. King and Mr. Lader mentioned, it is important
to use these tools to shape the force. You alluded earlier, Mr.
Chairman, to the National Performance Review and the need to
alter the ratio of supervisors to workers, and this is one of the tools
we can use to effect that end.

Let me summarize briefly where we are during our brief experi-
ence. This year, Mr. Chairman, we have reduced the civilian
workforce by nearly 70,000 people, and we have done so with only
2,000 forced separations; that is, 2,000 RIF's. Further, we have
managed to effect those separations, that downsizing or right-
sizing, without any adverse effect on the representation of women
and minorities in the force. We could not have done those things
without using the separation incentives that this Committee has
provided us,

In the brief period that we have worked on this program, we
have learned three important lessons, and I think they arc lessons
that both Mr. King and Mr. Lader alluded to earlier.

First, it is absolutely vital that we target these incentive offers.
Across-the-board incentives are very risky, and, indeed, the result
of an across-the-board incentive may be that we wind up hiring
new people to replace people we have just asked to leave. So we
need to target these things rather carefully.

Second, we have learned how very important it is for us to 'com-
municate, communicate, communicate, with supervisors and with
workers. I might say in this regard that we have an opportunity
under some of the changed labor-management relations encouraged
by the National Performance Review ,A) make mucln, greater use of
cooperative relations with our employee organizations so that they
can help us explain to workers what is happening with the separa-
tion program.

And, third, it is very important for other organizations to stay in
touch with the good people at the Office of Personnel Management
who have been invaluable in supporting us and providing us the
advice we need to make the program work as well as it has.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, our brief but encouraging experi-
ence suggests to us that the type of program we have been running
can work if it is managed correctly. It can help us reduce the size
of the workforce, but just as importantly, it can help us shape the
workforce, to find the right balance of workers and supervisors.
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Employees, we have found, support it. And when the tradeoff is in-
voluntary separations, there really is no other viable choice.

I will be pleased to respf)nd to your questions.
PREPARED STATEMENT OF EDWIN DORN

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:
It is my great pleasure to appear today to discuss S. 1535, the "Federal Workforce

Restructuring Act of 1993". I appreciate the opportunity to share with you our expe-rience in implementing the Separation Pay Program the Congress authorized in lastyear's National Defense Authorization, P.L. 102-484.
We have four major objectives in our work force reduction. They are to (1) achieve

the civi'ian employment levels set forth in the President's Budget Submissions, (2)
achieve a work force that is balanced in terms of grade and skill and which sustainsthe progress we have made in quality and in equal employment opportunity, (3)
minimize involuntary separations, and (4) assist those few employees we may haveto separate involuntarily. I am very pleased to report that with the Separation PayProgram we are achieving those objectives.

BACKGROUND

The President signed the public law authorizing our program October 23, 1992.The Secretary of Defense delegated authority to offer incentives on December 22nd.On December 30, we issued initial implementing instructions. Under those instruc-tions, the Assistant Secretary of Defense for Force Management and Personnel re-tained the authority to offer separation pay.
The first use of separation pay was at Chase Field Naval Air Station in Beeville,

Texas, in mid-January. Chase Field was scheduled to close at the end of Januaryand at the time the program was approved, 79 employees were scheduled for separa-tion. Of those, 49 were not interested in placement assistance-26 planned to retireand 24 did not want to leave the area. That left us with 30 employees to place. They
were mostly firefighters, clerical or wage grade employees. We looked to nearbyDOD installations and offered incentives to employees at the Naval Air Station andDefense Logistics Agency in Corpus Christi. Of the remaining 30 employees, weplaced 14 into vacancies we created using incentives, and 14 through our PriorityPlacement Program. There were only two we could not place. This limited experi-ence was very encouraging.

In late April, Secretary Aspin called for aggressive use of separation pay. We is-sued implementing instructions delegating authority to the Components and De-fense Agencies. Since that time, they have authorized over 40,000 incentives. Closeto 30,000 employees have been given incentives to leave. We have targeted our in-centive offers to employees in occupations, grades and locations where we antici-pated the-need for reduction in force or involuntary separations to reduce or shapethe workforce.
At this juncture, much of the information we have is preliminary and anecdotal.

Nevertheless, the results to date lead us to believe the program is working well.

RESULTS

Historically, DOD attrition averaged between 8 and 9 percent. By the fall of 1992,attrition had declined to less than 6 percent. For many years, Voluntary Early Re-
tirement Authority (VERA) was the best tool we had to avoid reductions in force(RIF). When we first be reducing the work force in 1988 and 1989 we expectedthat 16 to 18 percent of VERA eligibles would take early retirement. By 1992, wewere lucky to get a 4 percent take rate.

Our largest employers of civilians are our industrial activitiesthe Army and Air
Force Materiel Commands and the Naval Shipyards and Aviation Depots. At the be-g' ming of fiscal year 1993, each of these activities faced fiscal and workload reduc-tions that under normal circumstances would have caused the involuntary separa-tion of thousands of employees. Using incentives, both the Army and the Air ForceMateriel Command avoided fiscal year 1993 reductions in force (RIF). While someNaval Shipyards and Aviation Depots have issued separation notices, the numberof employees who may be separated was significantly lowered because of incentives.The story is the same at installation after installation.

Of the almost 30,000 employees who have taken incentives, 18 percent resigned,45 percent took voluntary early retirement and 37 percent took optional retirement.
The Components estimate that about 42 percent of the employees who are eligiblefor optional retirement and who have been offered an incentive will take it. About
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26 percent of the early retirement eligibles who have been offered an incentive have

taken it.
The average incentive taker has almost twice the years of service as the average

DOD employee, 26 years compared to 15. Both early and regular retirees average
28 years of service and $25,000 per incentive. The age for early retirees is about
52 years; for regular Latirees about 61 years. Those taking a resignation incentive
average 15 years of service and 48 years of age. They get an average of $17,000 per

incentive.
Looking at our initial data, it is apparent that those who have accepted incentives

are predominately white males. The majority of takers are veterans. The average
grade of the DOD population is 9.0. The average incentive taker is grade 10.

We can say unequivocally, that with incentives we have avoided thousands of in-
voluntary separations. We also believe that where we have to run reductions in

force, we will minimize the impact on women and minorities. Separation pay is cost
effective. It avoids the high cost and severe effect RIF has on productivity. Our pro-
gram is a success.

S. 1635

I am pleased the President has submitted the Workforce Restructuring Act and

that you are giving it your speedy attention. It will ease the reductions non-Defense
agencies must make in support of his initiatives and the National Performance Re-

view. The Department of Defense fully supports the Presidents initiative. While the
bulk of the bill does not apply to DOD, some provisions, such as the 9 percent fee
and training changes, cover all agencies. We support these provisions. The training
section will strengthen our ability to retrain employees as we reshape our workforce.

CONCLUSION

There are several cautions we would share with other agencies as they think
about implementing an incentive program. First, we firmly believe agencies must
target incentive offers to the groups of employees they need to reduce. Across the

board offers of incentives are risky; the result may be hiring new employees to do

the job of employees the agency just paid to leave. Second, communicate, commu-
nicate, communicate. The work force needs as much information as you can provide.

Cooperative relationships with employee organizations can be helpful in controlling
rumors and telling employees the straight facts. Third, talk to the fine staff at the
Office of Personnel Management. We wouldn't have made it through this year with-

out their constant help and advice. Share your plans with them, especially with the
Retirement and Insurance Group who will process retirement applications. Forth,
agencies must focus on the employees who will remain after the buyouts. They need
positive attention, counseling, training and feedback. They are the ones on whom

our future depends and on whom the dramatic changes envisioned by the NPR will
have the most impact. Finally, call us if you have questionswe've been there!

In conclusion, let me say again that this program, managed correctly, works. It
will help reduce and balance the Federal work force. Employees support it and when

the trade-off is involuntary separations there is no other choice.

Chairman GLENN. Thank you.
Before we get to questions, Senator Dorgan, do you have any

opening statement you wanted to make before we go to questions?
Senator DORGAN. No.
Chairman GLENN. All right. Fine. Let me sta-t off.
I am concerned about exactly how this would operate once we get

the thing going. For instance, let me lay out the basic problem here
as pointed out in the NPR, as I indicated before. We point out in
there that the problem in trying to have people leave Government
is not clear across all the different GS levels of Government. At the
lower levels, we probably could take care of it pretty much by attri-
tion, just by not hiring as those people leave Government.

The big disjoint here has come in the middle management levels
where we have a ratio of about 7 to 1 management to employees
where we would like to be up around 20 to 1 or 25 to 1, as pointed
out in this publication.
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Now, how do we get to that, and exactly how do we accomplish
that with this legislation? That, it seems to me, is something we
really have to answer.

Now, I am concerned about exactly how we would do this, and
I guess, Mr. King, I would ask you the question first. Do we target
this so that there are specific positions, specific boxes on the orga-
nization chart that would be eliminated? Otherwise, we just kick
one person out of there or give them an incentive to get out, and
we put a new person in the box, and we are back at the same level
again.

Do we go along with the reorganization of each department so
that when we wind up at the end of this we really truly do have
a new ratio, a new ratio of employees to management. If we have
not accomplished that, then this whole thing is sort of an exercise
in futility. If we have accomplished that over this 5-year period, the
goal that was set by this was to double that ratio; in other words,
make it 1 to 14 in a 5-year period.

I do not see how we are going to accomplish that unless we really
target specific boxes and eliminate some of those middle manage-
ment positions and decentralized Government, which this publica-
tion says we are trying to do. Do you think this will do that, and
how will it do it?

Mr. KING. I would like to do it in two parts, I think, by calling
on Mr. Lader to handle one of the parts, and I might handle an-
other, if that is agreeable to the Committee.

First of all, I think that what we want to do is optimize flexibil-
ity among the managers. We all talked about accountability. When
it comes time to establish accountability, it is a bit of a struggle,
and I understand that.

I think the first thing is we are not giving the voluntary separa-
tion incentives across the board. This is not queue up, report with
your beach chair at 3 o'clock in the morning and a sleeping bag and
queue up and we are going to handle it on a first come, first served
basis as you come through the door to retire you, and you are going
to get a cash bonus for your retirement. That is not at all what w°
are talking about.

What we are talking about is having our management staff, our
senior managers, in conjunction with all of our employees, start to
identify jobsnot people but jobsthat are redundant. That is why
you have a training component because in that process you will
find people who are not ready for this program. They should be re-
trained for the jobs of tomorrow because currently we only train for
the jobs of today or yesterday. That is one part of this.

What we are doing in each agency is giving them the authority
and the ability to start a management process. We started with a
construction analogy here. Let me at, y with it. I understand there
has been a load of bricks delivered. This is a building-block ap-
proach. How do we know the rest of the bricks will come in in a
timely fashion? I do not know, but I do know that in past perform-
ance, using the Department of Defense as a good working model,
that if it is prepared properly, you can reasonably anticipate the
delivery in a timely fashion if it is done in a coordinated way and
you have dedicated managers who are held accountable for their
action.
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The talk about be:A-filling, Mr. Chairman, is a legitimate ques-
tion. What we are talking about here are full-time equivalencies,
not the identical job. If you have identified a job as being redun-
dant, you do not need it. You have retired it, if you will. We are
retiring the job along with the person. It is not because they have
not performed. In this new world of management, with our cus-
tomer-service orientation, we are stressing how we can best deliver
services to the customer within budget. And here is the key thing.
I know this is where Mr. Lader will be coming in, but managing
to budget is very real, at least to us in the agencies.

Chairman GLENN. I understand that, but I do notlet me ask
Mr. Dorn. You have had some experience with this. Have you actu-
ally changed your ratio of managed to managers?

Mr. DOFtN. I cannot speak to that as a factual matter. I can tell
you that we have reduced the average tenure of our workforce,
which suggests to me that we have got more younger people and
relatively few older people. We have not so far targeted specific
grades.

However, the way the incentives work, Mr. Chairman, suggests
that that ratio will change more or less automatically. These incen-
tives result in our encouraging older, more highly tenured employ-
ees to retire because that is where the big incentive to retire is.

Chairman GLENN. Did you target these things in to the 13, 14,
15 GS level and not to the lower levels?

Mr. DOFtN. No, sir, we did not. Everyone is eligible. We target by
organization and by job type, but we do not target by specific
grade. We may need to.

Chairman GLENN. That is where the disjoint has occurred,
though, and that is supposed to be one of the prime objectives of
this legislation, as I understood it, to do that, and that is the rea-
son I was happy to introduce it, to change those ratios. That is
what the Vice President keeps talking about as being the big dis-
joint here and how we are not doing the things the same as we
could in private business, wants to change that, wants to make it
more efficient, wants to change those ratios.

Now, I am just curious as to exactly how this is going to change
the ratios unless we do target to specific jobs and try and eliminate
them, reorganize some of these wiring diagrams we have where all
the middle managers are. Unless we change that, it seems to me
we are just playing around with the deck chairs here.

Mr. DORN. Let me simply restate what I said earlier, Mr. Chair-
man, which is that the incentives are much more attractive to older
and higher-grade employees. If proportionally more of them leave
and we do not replace them we change those ratios.

Chairman GLENN. If we do not replace them.
Mr. DORN. That is true.
Chairman GLENN. Mr. Lader, you were going to say something

a minute ago there. It seems to all this is going to wind up in your
shop as to whether each agency's plan is worth anything or not,
and I do notI hope it is going to eliminate a lot of places where
there are redundant managers, as Mr. King says, and get this back
to a better ratio.
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Five years from now, you have an objective of doubling this to
making it a ratio of 14 to 1. How are we going to get there step
by step with this?

Mr. LADER. Mr. Chairman, for one thing, it is not going to be
done the same way in every agency. We have to look to the specific
missions, responsibilities, shortcomings, and strengths of each
agency, and that is the reason we have asked each to submit to
OMB its specific plan.

You are correct in saying there are some 700,000 employees,
about one-third of the civilian Federal workforce, who are involved
in personnel, budgeting, public relations, middle management
roles. We believe that a 252,000 reduction can be achieved with
that group as a principal target, but not the exclusive target. And
in certain agenciesand this is why individual agency head discre-
tion is so criticalthere needs to be this delicate balance.

The principal observation I would have is this, and I think all
Americans can relate to this. Everyday life in America has changed
dramatically over the last decade. When we go to the grocery store
today, there are fewer individuals working there because we have
bar codes and scanners. When we move funds around or invest, it
is done by touch-tone phone. Banking is so different. We see in our
everyday life in the private sector that the personnel needs of the
institutions have changed dramatically, and yet the Federal Gov-
ernment has been left virtually untouched by this management and
technological revolution that has transformed everyday life.

We at OMB, in reviewing the specific plans to be submitted by
each department and agency, will be asking first: How are you ad-
dressing the span of control of supervisors versus individuals who
do hands-on customer service, work delivery, analysis? We will be
asking in addition to that: How does this plan reflect technological
changes? We have $26 billion of information technology funds in
this year's budget. How is that money being used to offset person-
nel costs and to allow us to do things smarter?

There is a long series of questions that we will have to be raising
individually with each department and agency to address the spe-
cific concern you have to right-size, not just to downsize these
agencies.

Chairman GLENN. My time is up. Senator Roth?
Senator Rom. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Let me carry on with a line of discussion started by the Chair-

man. Will there be cutbacks in every department, or will there be
some departments that will result in increased personnel because
of the nature of their duties?

Mr. KING. I will tell you right now we are going to have an in-
crease in our retirement program. I have to have more people,
more process, more data computation because I am going to have
a flood, and this will occur. We could identify areas where we are
going eo have additional workloads.

Mr. LADER. We will be discussing that.
Mr. KING. So there is an area that will go up, you know, if this

legislation goes through. On the other hand, there will be other
areas in our agency that will go down, and so there is a question
of cross-transfer of people.
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Senator Rom. Well, agencies like yours that are going up,should this
Mr. KING. Not agency. One section in it, Senator. I am sorry.

Others will be going down.
Senator ROTH. Will there be any agencies where there will be a

net increase, say, for example, EPA?
Mr. LADER. Possibly, E 3nator. Let me give you this illustration.

Given just the differential in sizes of the agencies, for example, you
know these numbers well: The Department of Defense, 976,000 em-
ployees; Veterans Affairs, 200

Senator Rom. Rather than go down the list
Mr. LADER. I am not going to go down the list, but if I might,

sir, just to make one point. Veterans Affairs, 200,000; the Edu-
cation Department, 4,000. Not 400, 4,000.

So if, for example, if the Department of Veterans Affairs had no
change in its employment rate, to achieve the 252,000 we would
not have 12 percent across the. board. It would have to be 15 per-
cent across the board in the other agencies.

No one is suggesting across-the-board at all, but neither is any-
one suggesting that there are winners znd losers already des-
ignated. As part of this process, OMB, .h the authority given by
the President, will be having individual discussions with the agen-
cies, program-by-program, as part of the fiscal year 1995 budget
process. And there may well beyou raise EPA; OPM is another
candidatevarious candidates who show needs for specific pro-
grams to increase p2rsonnel. But for every one that increases, we
have to have a decrease because the President is committed to the
12 percent reduction of the Federal workforce in 5 years.

Senator Rom. Well, let me ask you this question. Why should
the Government pay a bonus to an employee to retire if the Gov-
ernment is going to fill that vacancy?

Mr. KING. There are two things. We save money. It is cheaper.
Senator ROTH. How do you save money by
Mr. KING. Because your alternative is to RIF, which in this case

will run about 30 percent more in real costs. So you are way ahead
of the ball game.

Senator Rom. Won't that depend on the facts of each particular
case?

Mr. KING. The average we have is about a $40,000 departure.
That is the profile we have of those that leave. So if you only have
one, I believe it is roughly $20,000 per year you saveyou know,
even if you replace. We are not replacing at the $40,000 level.

Senator Rom. Again, I am not talking about a RIF. I am saying
why should the Government pay a bonus to an employee to retire
if the Government may fill the vacancy. There is no RIF'ing here.

Mr. KING. No. What I am saying is the alternative to having
them voluntarily depart is to RIF. So the comparison is

Senator ROTH. But that is not my questicn here.
Mr. KING. But that is the issue if I am the manager, sir.
Senator ROTH. Well, I do not understand.
Mr. KING. They are going out the door.
Senator Rom. If you are going to keep that position filled
Mr. KING. I am not necessarily keeping that position filled. I am

talking about full-time equivalencies.
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Senator Rom. That is the example I am giving you.Mr. KING. Well, I am not necessarilyif I declare something re-dundant within my agency, I am not going to refill it. What we aretalking about is a very dynamic management situation, which Ithink Mr. Lader described. As the mission changes, there is a read-justment within the management, and what we are trying to do isprovid3 optimal flexibility with minimum disruption at the workinglevel, and we are doing it cheaper than the alternative, which isto RIF.
Senator Rom. Let me go forward. Do you intend to replace someof the employees who will leave even though the goal is a reductionof 252,000 and the expectation of OMB is that only 60,000 to100,000 will accept voluntary separation?
Mr. KING. Yes. At the end of the day, though, Senator, I haveto come in to manage to my budget. I am not necessarily going tobe trading off 1 for 1 or 1 for 2 or anything else. I will carry outnot only the sense of the Congress, but the sense of the reality ofmy budget, which in many cases may be 3, 4, or 5 to 1, or 0 to 1on replacement.
I am still managing to budget. There are a number of controlsthat are built into this. It is not a single control alone. It merelypermits the managers to make very discrete decisions that are veryimportant, affecting us in a very substantial way. And that is whatwe are looking for, is your support to do it in the most economicaland least disruptive fashion.
Mr. LADER. Senator, if I might just add a quick footnote. The twoprincipal themes, in response to your concernand it is a very le-gitimate concern: managing to budget and performance, giving theindividual agency heads and managers the discretion to get the jobdone. If that means spending more on current employees or an ad-ditional program or using part of that money for a buyout, lettingthe individual manager do that, but be held accountable for per-formance.
The second theme: no new money, no separate pot of money. Allof this buyout would come from the existing allocated budget.
Senator ROTH. I 'want to go into that later, but my time is run-ning out. Let me ask you this: Would you accept an amendment topreclude filling vacancies created by use of these incentives?
Mr. KING. Would you say that again? I did not hear. I am sorry,Senator.
Senator ROTH. Would you accept an amendment to preclude fill-ing vacancies created by use of these incentives?
Mr. KING. It cuts down your flexibility, Senator, reduces the in-terest of managers to necessarily reduce their budgets. There is noincentive whatsoever at the managerial level.
Senator Rom. But, you see, from our point of view, or at leastfrom my point of view, there is concern that we will use these in-centives to get rid of people, then hire new people, and there is nonet savings. Why shouldn't we have some kind of limitation?
Mr. LADER. Senator, let me give this illustration of one, at therisk of being too simplistic. Pick any agency, NASA, for example.Let's assumeand I do not know it this is the casethat NASAhas a high number of administrative assistants or secretaries whoare close to rel irement age or who are eligible for retirement. At
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the same time there is a shortage of physicists, and there is a need
to add some positions, people who have that background.

If, in fact, you did not have the ability to encourage more of the
people who were eligible or close to eligible for retirement in the
former category to leave, and have the ability to fill those positions
with people with a physics background to help in that scientific ef-

fort of that agency, then you would really be impairing the agency
in the accomplishment of its mission.

So we behave it is very critical that for every two buyouts no
more than one of those positions can be replaced to right-size, given
the needs and the missions of that agency.

Senator ROTH. If I might just carry on a minute, there was an
article in one of the local papers recently talking about a similar
plan that the President put into effect in the State of Arkansas. Ac-

cording to this article, the State plan proposed to cut nearly 1,100
State employees, which they did, but the result was that a year
after the plan became effective and after the 1,100 State workers
chose early retirement, the State payroll was reduced by a net of
only 107 employees. According to this article, the key workers,
those making the highest salaries, had been replaced by others at
similar pay, but with less experience.

Now, the thing that concerns me, I am sympathetic as to what
the administration says it is trying to do, but I do not want to find

a year or 2 years later that we end up with very minimal change
and yet we have spent a lot of money because, let's face it, this pro-
gram is going to cost additional money. I think there is something
like $2 billion already provided in the budget to help finance it, and
then the retirement is going to net another $500 million.

So we cannot say that this is a cost-free proposal. We can only,
in my judgment, justify it if we do, in fact, reduce the payroll by
that 252,000 proposed in the National Performance Review. And
yet what worries me is that if you leave all this so-called flexibility

you are talking about, you may end up spending some pretty huge
sums of money and net no right-sizing. That is the concern.

Mr. KING. New York had the same thing happen in 1983, Sen-
ator, and several other States have had that experience, including,
I must add, Massachusetts. That is why this legislation that the
Committee has is to prudent. It does not permit what you have
suggested to happen.

Senator Rom. You see, my concern is that there is no guarantee.
Mr. KING. Oh, there is no guarantee in anything.
Senator Rom. There is no guarantee that there will be any re-

duction in
Mr. KING. But, Senatorwell, yes, the guarantee is that you cs.n-

not replace more than half the employees who leave. We are talk-
ing one out of two, so you save $20,000 automatically, on average.

Senator ROTH. Why should we pay an incentive to those that are
leaving that are going to be refilled? Why do we need to

Mr. KING. No, Senator. You have said that a couple of times, and
I am sureI knowit is because I failed to effectively commu-
nicate. We are talking about full-time equivalency, not the job. We

are not refilling the job.
You asked me earlier, Senator, is the number of employees going

to increase anywhere, and I raised my hand and said yes, in our



retirement area. We are going to need more people to do computer
entry. I am going to be taking out people, people departing at a
much higher salary, but I still can only rehire one for every two.

Senator ROTH. Would you accept an amendment to do what you
are saying?

Mr. KING. It is in there.
Chairman GLENN. Senator Dorgan?
Senator DORGAN. Well, I have some other questions, but let me

just stick with this issue. I do not think you are quite talking to
each other. He is asking a very specific question, and it is a legiti-
mate question. If you say you want to hire a physicist, somebody
with a physics background, and you want to get rid of some admin-
istrative assistants, he is saying if you get rid of an administrative
assistant, are you going to guarantee me you are not going to hire
another administrative assistant? And I do not think you an-
swered.

Mr. KING. My answer would be in my agencynow I can respond
from my agency.

Senator DORGAN. But he is asking about the Government pro-
gram.

Mr. KING. You cannot answer the Government, Senatoras re-
spectful as I would like to make it, we are talking about having
managers accountable. No one, no one can guarantee that to you,
Senator.

Senator DORGAN. Then your answer is that you cannot guarantee
him that somebody is not going to get rid of an administrative as-
sistant, pay a bonus to do it, and then hire somebody else as an
administrative assistant. And that is what he is concerned about,
and I would be concerned about that as well, I might add.

Mr. LADER. Let me add as well, our Government has gotten in
the less-than-optimal performance state that we find ourselves, not
because of any malice of forethought, but because of the aggregate
of many rules, each of which address cases of fraud, waste, abuse,
and the like.

What we seek to do, as a result of the National Performance Re-
view, is to let managers have more managerial discretion, being
held accountable for budget and for performance.

Now, we have traditionally had all these specificationsGS this
and GS that and job classificationsand I ask you, sir: Can any
of you say that every United States Senator has identically the
same qualifications or abilities? It is the mix that allows us to have
the Senate perform as it does.

One administrative assistant may not be the same as another,
and it may well be that there are needs in certain cases where
someone who is an administrative assistant who performed the re-
sponsibilities of an administrative assistant very well as defined in
the 1950's or 1960's, does not have all the skills or interests or ap-
titudes for the 1990's. That is a question of managerial discretion.
And lest I point simply to one job classification, that could apply
to physicists as well, somebody who is a physicist of the 1980's and
not of the 1990's.

Senator DORGAN. Mr. Lader, the reason that we are asking the
question, the reason, I am sure, Mr. Roth did, and I did, is that
we are stuck with the perverse results of being in charge of the
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purse strings. And if we find that we paid a lot of money to ask
people to get out of here and retire and you go back and replace
them with new people with less experience, we are the ones with
egg on our face because we are the ones that paid for it.

Let me go on for just a minute because I want to understand a
little more about why we need to do this. I was watching television
some while ago, and I realized how outrageous things have gotten
in our country. They were talking about a professor in New York
who had obtained a favorable court decision. Because he had ten-
ure, he could not be fired simply because he was incompetent. And
it occurred to me that when we are talking about these cir-
cumstances, they were describing a system in which almost every-
body has tenure. I understand the reason for that with respect to
a broad range of public employees, and I support that.

But if you have upper-level management people performing a job
and at some point requirements change and you no longer need
that joband Herb has been in that job for a very long while, he
is making good money, has had a good career, but you do not need
that job anymoreyou just cannot get rid of Herb. Is that right?
The current rules just make it impossible to get rid of Herb unless
you buy Herb out? Does Herb have tenure here? I am talking about
the upper-level management people now, which I want to talk
about in more detail because I want to make sure that we are not
just restructuring by getting rid of all the little folks and all the
big folks keep their jobs.

Mr. KING. Well, Senator, I think first let me go back to what was
originally asked and your follow-up question. The situation that oc-
curred in New York and many other States and cities was based
on the employee determining that they wished to take the early-
out. They identified themselves, stepped forward, volunteered, took
the cash bonus, and left. And that was the situation that created
so much chaos.

What we are talking about is a managed system in which we
identify jobs, not people but jobs, that are not needed within an
agency. The process then goes two ways: one, if the person is a sen-
ior person and we can identify that in point of fact they can retire
from that job; secondly, there may be positions in this that we iden-
tify are not needed where we should be retraining. And that is why
the training provision in here is so essential. They fit together.

The process is to do what you say: to identify those jobs that are
no longer necessary and then dealing with these issues in the most
humane way possible, and using the talents that each of these indi-
viduals brings to that particular site. Can we harness them? Can
we utilize them? And in each case, I think you will notice that we
want senior managers and we want people of ability to stay. And
that is what this permits us. It is a discretionary tool.

Senator DORGAN. I was looking the other day at one branch of
the Armed Forces, looking at the to level, how many generals do
you have versus lieutenants, second lieutenants, and what has hap-
pened since the 1970's, since the Vietnam War, with that agency.
That particular branch of the service is downsizing as well, except
they have not downsized the number of generals quite yet. The
generals are making decisions about who else gets downsized.
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Now, how do we assure ourselves that the same problem will not
exist in every agency of the Federal Government? Those who make
decisions about who get downsized are going to make sure that
their jobs are not downsized.

Mr. KING. Senator, in my operation, we are starting at the top,
and we are going to de-layer, and that is where it will start. I
would like to think that we in the personnel operation will be the
model agency for this country and for this Government, and we in-
tend then to carry that forward, in our workings with the other
agencies, in going through this process, and with the OMB commit-
ment on the management to budget and the other kinds of controls.
And I do not want to speak for Mr. Lader; I will yield to him. I
think that the pairing fits.

Mr. DORN. Senator, may I make a couple of general comments
about this line of questioning? First, Senator Roth, with respect to
a question you were asking earlier about replacing one for one, that
is one of the reasons it is very important to target these incentives
so that, in fact, that does not happen.

Second, I want to point out that one of the things we are trying
to do with this legislation and one of the things that this Commit-
tee provided us in the DOD authorization last year was much more
refined tools. As Mr. King was pointing out, when one is
downsizing and one's only tool is a reduction in force, you have
really perverse results. You wind up bumping out your more junior
people, often the most enthusiastic people in your workforce.

Senator DORGAN. Under the current rules?
Mr. DORN. Under the current rules, you wind up bumping the

junior people. You wind up with an older and more highly paid
workforce. That is not a desirable outcome.

There is also sort of a secondary perverse effect, which is that
those more junior people are more likely to be women and minori-
ties.

So we use these separation incentives, and one of the effects of
the separation incentives in DOD so far is that the average age of
the civilians in our population is about 43 years. The average age
of the people taking the separation incentives is around 55 years.
The average length of service of the average DOD employee is
around 15 years, while the average length of service of the people
taking these incentives is around 26 years.

That all o indirectly, Mr. Chairman, addresses a question you
had asked earlier about whether or not we were getting rid of the
supervisors. These people with the 26 years of experience are, of
course, our supervisors. And I also want to reassure you, Senator
Roth, that at least with r( 3pect to DOD, we are coming down. We
have come down by 70,001 people just in the past year. We have
come down by more than 170,000 people in the past 4 years. So the
chances of our playing games with this systemthat is, replacing
one clerk with one coming inare very, very small, particularly be-
cause these incentives so often are aimed at organizations that are
being closed out.

Chairman GLENN. Senator Stevens?
Senator Rom. Could I just make a comment? I think that is true

in the case of the Department of Defense because their funds are
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going down. I am not sure that that is true in other agencies that
you have that automatically policing enforcement.

If I could just follow through on one question that Senator Dor-
gan raised, like him I am concerned about the top people taking
care of themselves. I am also concerned that Washington will take
care of itself and that the cuts will be made out in the field office
where the action is.

One of the things I am interested in seeing is Government
brought closer to the people back home in making these decisions.
I am bothered that traditionally in the pastI am not talking
about what you people plan to do, but what has happened in the
past is that it is the field offices that are on the front that are re-
duced and eliminated. In some cases, that is right, but many times,
it seems to me, with modern communications the emphasis should
be to bring Government to the people, to the local area. And that
can be done with modern communication. But the tendency is for
Washington to take care of itself.

Chairman GLENN. Senator Stevens?
Senator STEVENS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I am in-

volved in the floor, and, gentlemen, my statement is already in the
record. I am not going to make any statement. I do have a couple
of questions, three, I think, and I would appreciate it if you would
try to be brief so I can get back to my role on the floor.

CBO determined this bill results in direct spending and raises
pay-go problems under the Budget Act. Has the OMB made a re-
sponse to this? And if you have, may we have it for the record?

Mr. LADER. Yes, we have a polite disagreement with CBO for
this reason: OMB takes more of a strict constructionist view of this.
Essentially there are no new funds to be used, and consequently,
in terms of discretionary spending, the buyout moneys would come
out of the allocated budgets for the agencies. And on the mandatory
side, because of the required 9 percent contribution towards the an-
nuity base in the retirement plan, we hold at OMB that there is
not a pay-go requirement there. CBO takes a different view

Senator STEVENS. Mr. Lader, is that in writing somewhere?
Mr. LADER. Yes, sir, and I would be happy to submit it to you.
Senator STEVENS. We would like to see it in the record because

I heard that there was a response, and I think we should have
that.

Chairman GLENN. Submit that for the record so we can have it
for the record.

Mr. LADER. Absolutely, sir.
Chairman GLENN. Without objection, it will be included in the

record.

INSERT FOR THE RECORD

The voluntary separation incentive legislation permits agencies to offer financial
incentives that must be funded from their existing discretionary appropriations. The
legislation does not directly change retirement law. By encouraging separations, the
incentive may increase retirement, but this increase is not a direct effect of the leg-
islation. The rules for retirement remain unchanged. It has been OMB's view that
the Budget Enforcement Act specifies that OMB score only the direct effects of legis-
lation. Because OMB's scoring is used to determine the need for a sequester, the
separation incentive would not trigger a sequester under the Budget Enforcement
Act.



CBO takes a broader view of legislation. Where OMB laces more weight on the
specific wording of the legislation, CBO places more we' t on the intent of legisla-
tion. As a result of CBO's emphasis on the intent of legis ation, CEO views the sepa-
rations, including the impact on the retirement accounts, as a direct result of the
separation incentive and, hence, scores the effect as a pay-as-you-go cost.

However, any costs to the fund that result from early annuity payments and fore-
gone employee contributions are offset by reductions in annuities and the proposed
9 percent contribution from the agency. Therefore, when considered over the longer
term, this proposal is cost neutral with respect to the retirement program.

Senator ROTH. What does CBO say is the answer?
Mr. LADER. CBO's view is because this is likely to cause
Senator STEVENS. Senator, would you mind doing that on your

own time? I have got to get back now. I have three questions. I
want to ask them and then go. All right?

NG;I, a constituent of mine suggested that another option be
added: in lieu of the lump-sum incentive, to allow an employee to
add 5 years of service or 5 years of age or something like that in
order to reach a minimum retirement eligibility. Has the adminis-
tration looked at this concept? Rather than having a cash-out, have
an "eligibility out" which really phases this cost in an entirely dif-
ferent way. It reduces some of the budgetary impact.

Mr. King, it is nice to see you.
Mr. KING. Good seeing you, Senator. Thank you.
My colleague on my right, Senator, when we were working on the

legislation, OMB was very concerned, and they said to me as an
agency head, How would you manage your way out of this so that
it is budget-neutral? The only way I could get it to be budget neu-
tral was to have a short window early in my fiscal year so I could
make the offer to the individual involved; if they accepted it, to
have the cash come out of that current year; and, therefore, my
next fiscal year, where I am facing a severe cut, another severe cut,
Senator, I do not have the money to roll over and to extend unless
somehow we had a trusteed fund that came out of this fiscal year
and it was a set-aside.

Senator STEVENS. Well, this would merely involved an obligation
of the United States generally to reimburse the retirement fund for
the increases if we just patch on a 5-year service or 5-year age con-
cept. It spread out over the retirement fund. I would urge you to
look at it. When I heard about it, I thought it was a good proposal.

Let me go on to the third question, and it will be the last one.
We had in Public Law 102-484 a provision which allowed employ-
ees separated in a reduction in force who are not eligible for imme-
diate annuity to retain their Thrift Savings Plan account until re-
tirement. As you know, I helped devise the thrift fund, and I really
have great feeling for it. Under the current law, all other employ-
ees who leave Federal service before they reach retirement age
must close out the thrift plan account. In most cases they are re-
quired tot transfer the funds to an IRA or to an eligible retirement
plan. That is an additional barrier to separation, in my judgment.
If we are going to expect employees to take advantage of the oppor-
tunities for separation, the initiatives that would be authorized if
this bill is enacted.

Would the administration have a position on an amendmentif
you do not have one now, just give it for the recordto this bill
to streamline and simplify the thrift plan system to give all partici-



pants in this plan under this bill the same choices: to leave their
funds in the plan where they can continue to earn but not continue
to contribute, to authorize a trustee-to-trustee rollover into an IRA
or other retirement plan, or to withdraw their funds subject to the
20 percent tax withholding?

Now, I think that fear of those who are under the new system
of retirement might lose that access to the thrift plan is going to
be a deterrent to this early-out concept working.

Mr. KING. I would like to get back to the Senator for the record
with very accurate numbers on that, and I think it might be help-

sir.
Senator STEVENS. It really does not involve budgetary impact at

all. It is a policy question.
Mr. KING. Exactly.
Senator STEVENS. I will send a request, Mr. Chairman and Sen-

ator Roth, if I may, to the thrift plan managers to see if they would
have a feeling about that. But I think those who have really par-
ticipated in the thrift plan would want to participate until retire-
ment because it is now a substantial portion of retirees' projections
in terms of income for the future.

Chairman GLENN. Do you want us to keep the record open for
that?

Senator STEVENS. If I may.
Chairman GLENN. Without objection, the record will be kept

open.

INS3RT FOR THE RECORD

FEDERAL RETIREMENT 'THRIFT INVESTMENT BOARD
Washington, DC, October 20, 1993

Hon. TED STEVENS
Committee on Governmental Affairs, U.S. Senate,
Washington, DC.

DEAR SENATOR STEVENS: I am pleased to express our support for the extension
of Thrift Savings Plan (TSP) benefits authorized under P.L. 102-484 to all TSP par-
ticipants. Such a change would provide all TSP participants with the withdrawal
options that are now available only to those who are eligible for immediate retire-
ment benefits or, under P.L. 102-484, separated due to a reduction in force.

Under this approach all separating employees would be granted the same full
range of withdrawal options: (1) to have the TSP transfer their account balances to
an Individual Retirement Arrangement (IRA) or other eligible retirement plan, (2)
to have the TSP purchase annuities for them, (3) to receive their account balances
in a single payment or a series of equal payments, or (4) to retain their accounts
with the TSP.

Standardizing withdrawal options would greatly simplify the TSP withdrawal pro-
gram and reduce administrative costa. It would permit less complicated forms and
other communications materials as well as more timely processing of withdrawal re-
quests.

I look forward to assisting the Committee in furthering this proposal.
Sincerely,

FRANCIS X. CAVANAUGH
Executive Director.

Senator STEVENS. Thank you for your courtesy, and my apologies
to you, my friend. I do have to get back to the floor.

Chairman GLENN. In the Department of Defense, I am curious
as to how this worked over the past year. Do you have a break-
down? I want to come back to my original statement. We are still
trying to correct this imbalance between the managers and the
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lower-level employees. In DOD, do you have any figures on that?
Can you give us any figures as to what positions were actually
eliminated at the Department of Defense over this past year? Were
there any boxes on your wiring diagram that are no longer there?
Or have we just replaced people, some people left and other people
moved up into that same spot again, so we basically have the same
ratio?

When we talk about mid-managers, are we talking 13, 14, 15? Is
that it?

Mr. DORN. That is correct, Senator.
Chairman GLENN. Do you know how many people are in DOD

that fit in that category?
Mr. DORN. Senator, I will have to give you those numbers later.
Chairman GLENN. If you could supply that for the record. I would

also like to have
INSERT FOR THE RECORD

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE CIVILIAN EMPLOYEES
NUMBER OF GS/GM-13's, -14's, AND -15's

(December 31, 1993)
GS/WA-13 51,955
GS/GM-14 23,298
GS/GM-15 10,161

Total 85,414

Mr. DORN. As well as information on ratio changes.
Chairman GLENN. I would like to have the ratio changes. Do you

have that with you this morning?
Mr. DoRN. No, sir, I do not. But we can get them to you very

quickly.

INSERT FOR THE RECORD

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE CIVILIAN EMPLOYEESRATIO OF HIGH-GRADE EMPLOYEES TO
TOTAL

September December
1992 1993

GS/GM-13's, -14's and -15's 88,415 85,414
Total OS/GM work tome 846,301 606,497
Ratio of high-grade employees to total 1/7.3 117.1

Chairman GLENN. I would like to have the ratio changes, the
numbers over there and how many have been reduced. And can
you point to any places where boxes on your organizational chart
have actually been eliminated?

Mr. DoRN. Only in terms of major installations, Senator. As you
know, we are closing large numbers of bases.

Chairman GLENN. Well, that is a different problem, though. That
is not quite the same thing as we are talking about here. We are
talking about sort of a stable Government and reorganizing it so
it works better. I do not think downsizing of the military wouldquite

Mr. DoRN. Well, and I think you are talking about whether we
have actually flattened specific organizations. Is that correct?
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Chairman GLENN. Well, I am talking basically about this ratio.
That is what we set out to do with the National Performance Re-
view. We have now had a year's experience, or most of a year, over
in DOD. Has it actually happened from what you have done? Be-
cause as I understand it, the legislation we are proposing here is
almost identical. I do not know that there are any changes from
what we did with DOD last year.

Are there any differences, Mr. King? Do you know?
Mr. KING. I do not have the exact numbers. I can get them to

you. It might be helpful, Mr. Chairman, to identify that there are
about 178,000 13's through 15's.

Chairman GLENN. No, I am talking about something different
here.

Mr. KING. Their experience?
Chairman GLENN. No. I am talking about are there any dif-

ferences in what has been pfoposed in this bill from what we did
for DOD last year. Is it basically the same proposal?

Mr. KING. It is strikingly similar, but there are differences.
Chairman GLENN. OK. And so we would expect that if we are

really going to change these ratios, which were the major focus of
the NPR report, if it has had effect in DOD, it will have effect else-
where, too. So I would like to have that information, if you would
give it to us.

Mr. DORN. I will be pleased to, Senator. Let me say, to preface
what we sent over that the primary purpose of the legislation you
helped us secure last year, in fact, was not to change that ratio but,
rather, to effect a downsizing without RIF's.

Chairman GLENN. It had some different purpose. That is right.
But I think it is basically the same mechanism, anyway. And you
are right. There was a different purpose to it last year, and so that
is a difference.

Mr. Lader, when you are looking at plans from the different
agencies and departments, I do not know whether you have set
down your general guidelines for this yet or not. But I am curious
as to whether you are going to target some of the boxes that are
no longer necessary in organization as opposed to just giving gen-
eral numbers as target objectives to each agency. Or I suppose
what might work in one agency migl tt not work in another.

But do you have any general guidelines on this thing? Because
I am concerned that we really changed some of these ratios.

Mr. LADER. Mr. Chairman, that really goes to the heart of it. And
if I might refer back to the similar question. asked by Senator Dor-
gan, who also has had such a long interest in management. Our
goal is not, in what may have been historic OMB fashion, to say
this is the number and this is the 47 pages of how you are to ac-
complish that. The goal here is to be reviewing the specific plans
agency-by-agency.

Now, there are some common questions that we will be asking,
criteria by which plans will be found acceptable, and let me illus-
trate, if I might. We are going to ask to what extent is that man-
agement span of control changed, what your line of questioning has
been all about. We are going to question, has further decentraliza-
tion occurred as a result of your downsizing? What type of greater
empowerment of line employees will result to help them, give them

36



33

more decisionmaking authority to treat taxpayers as more like cus-
tomers? What mechanisms are there to hold employees accountable
as a result of this change?

And as we look to the targeting, the targeting isand I hope I
have not misled by using this very simple example of two particu-
lar jobs categoriesbased on geography, location, roles, and mis-
sions.

For example, we will look at each plan and say, What is the
change in your headquarters staff? What are the numbers and the
changes in responsibilities? What is the difference in the field
structurehow, as Senator Roth pointed out, because of the use of
technology in HUD, it may be very different from what it is at EPA
as to the role of what the regional or the local office plays. What
is the impact on vertical layering? To what extent does the use of
your buyouts in your specific plan, Mr. Secretary or Mr. Director,
impact this layering? And, finally, what consolidation of functions
has occurred?

Then the final question, which is also the first question: How has
the use of these buyouts improved the performance of your agency?

Now, that is the headline version. There will be many more spe-
cific questions. But that is the type of prism, if you will, or matrix
through which each of these plans will be screened so that we can
try to make sure that the buyouts are being utilized not just for
downsizing but for right-sizing in the most contemporary sense of
better management.

Chairman GLENN. The yellow light is on there. My time is almost
out, but maybe you could answer this question briefly. Did you con-
sider something along the lines of altering the severance pay. and
doing something like that, which got over into a little bit of what
Senator Stevens was talking about, I guess. Did you consider that
as opposed to the buyout?

Mr. KING. We stayed within the framework and the experience
of the Department of Defense, and we said, quite frankly, in a
minimalistic way: How can we effect the outcomethat is, the vol-
untary acceptance and the voluntary departurewith minimum
cost? And what you are seeing is that exact figure. We can be more
generous in any category. I have a generous spirit in and of myself,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman GLENN. OK. Well, I want to see the figures on the De-
partment of Defense because our objective here is one thing, and
I am not getting the figures from the Department of Defense that
it has worked along that line. If it has not, if we just replaced peo-
ple in boxes and all that has remained the same, why, we have not
done a whole heck of a lot here. So we can point the numbers of
people out, but if there are numbers of people in, then the net is
not so good there.

Anyway, Senator Roth?
Senator ROTH. I do not want to spend a lot of time on the line

of questioning I had before, except to say that one of the things
that bothers me about this proposed legislation is that in reduction
of goals, all we say is that it is the sense of Congress that employ-
ment in the executive branch should be reduced by not less than
one full-time equivalent for every two who are bought out. So that
really does not say anything. It expresses a hope.
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I can only say, as one Senator, that I am for right-sizing, but be-
fore I can support any legislation, I am going to have to be assured
that there is some kind of statement or provision in the legislation
that will ensure that when we get through that there truly is right-
sizing. So I just want to make that comment.

I would like to go back to the question Senator Stevens raised
because, as I understand it, CBO has taken an entirely different
position, Mr. Lader, from 0114'3 as to what the costs would be.
Would you explain that?

Mr. LADER. Yes. Again, it is because of OMB's strict construc-
tionist view of this. It is our view that unless specific legislation
automatically requires something, then it is not scored accordingly.

Now, it is our expectation, the intent of this legislation, that
there will be an increasing number of people leaving the Govern-
ment; therefore, there will be an acceleration of the required pay-
ments of the annuities.

Now, we feel from a common-sense perspective that that is cer-
tainly covered because of the legislation's requirement that there
be a 9 percent contribution for each individual under this buyout
to go towards making up that potential difference in the retirement
plan.

Senator Rom. The 9 percent intergovernmental transfer would
offset $273 million of the additional direct costs and spending,
which I think is supposed to be $792 million. So, consequently,
$519 million in direct spending would occur if this bill is passed,
according to CBO.

Now, we have the pay-as-you-go requirement under the 1990
Budget Act. What cuts in mandatory spending are you going to
suggest to pay for this bill, or would you seek to persuade members
to waive the Budget Act points of order by offsetting discretionary
spending cuts in the upcoming rescission package to offset the
costs?

Mr. LADER. Two points, sir. First, even CBO in its letter ac-
knowledges that the contribution, that 9 percent up front contribu-
tion will cover, over the long-term, the additional cost of the early
retirement annuity. And there is a time line there, as you know,
as to when those payments are made in the retirement history of
the individuals.

The second point, though, is there is no need for further con-
tribution because the 9 percent was based on the 1975 through
1989 14-year experience in actuarial terms of the Civil Service Re-
tirement System. So it is believed that that 9 percent contribution
will adequately cover the expenditure on the mandatory side. Con-
sequently, we at OMB do not believe that there is a need for a pay-
as-you-go sequester in that regard.

Senator Rom. But that is not the case with CBO.
Mr. LADER. CBO differs on how that scoring occurs, but CBO

does not differ that there is no requirement for additional new
moneys.

Senator Rom. If this legislation is written into law, how many
employees will voluntarily leave, do you estimate?

Mr. LADER. OPM can address that.
Mr. KING. Our estimate is 50,000 to 60,000.
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Senator Rom. How do you intend to bring about the additional
reductions for the total of 252,000?

Mr. KING. Well, we continue. I think the announcement was that
this would not be over until 1999. What this does is to permit the
management of the attrition so you have this, if you would, shot
in the arm and stabilization within the agencies. You get the op-
portunity to manage it in a little different fashion, and in this proc-
ess, I believe, you get yourself and your regular attrition back to
where it should be. And you can manage to this figure very, very
reasonably. We hope to do it in our agency considerably sooner
than 1999.

Senator ROTH. But you will rely, then, on attrition?
Mr. KING. Attrition, heavily. l' aw, there may be instances where

you must go beyond that, Senator, but I must say that the commit-
ment we have is to attrition.

Senator ROTH. One of the questions I have is, in downsizing so
quickly, part of the problem of management is, of course, to deal
with the many complicated rules and regulations, personnel rules
and regulations. I think the Vice President had piles of them to
show. How are you going to take action on those rules and regula-
tions in time to meet the goals of this proposed legislation? Can
you revise those personnel rules by November 1st?

Mr. KING. We do not have to revise all 10,000 pages, Senator. I
think what we can do iscan we accommodate this? The answer
is yes.

Senator ROTH. How? Doesn't it take legislative---
Mr. KING. It does not run counter. It isI am sorry.
Senator ROTH. Doesn't it take legislative action to really elimi-

nate many of these rules and regulations?
Mr. KING. Oh, we will come; back with those, Senator, but there

are an awful lot in there that are regulations, interpretations, past
practices that have been codified. We are going through it as we
speak, page by page, chapter by chapter, and we would hope to
have a report back to the Congress and to the President in a rea-
sonable time, no later than March.

Senator Rom. In a sense, though, don't you need the elimination
of those rules and regulations prior to the reduction of many of
these management personnel who are responsible for

Mr. KING. I do not think so. I can say in my agency, no.
Senator ROTH. How are you going to comply with those rules and

regulations if you do not have---
Mr. KING. This is voluntary, sir.
Senator ROTH. I realize those that leave are voluntary, but aren't

many of those personnel involved in administering those complex
rules and regulations?

Mr. KING. I do not know because I do not know how they are
going to manage. On the one hand, they are talking about wanting
to be detailed from OPM, the various personnel prerogatives. They
are going to need people to do that, I presume. They will need
personnelists to do it within their own agency. That is why the
agencies, each agency has its own needs, and that is why I would
like to have them determined at that level rather than at some uni-
versal level, but have people accountable. And that is why, can-
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didly, as you know, Senator, these hearings are so helpful. The
message goes out.

Chairman GLENN. Senator Dorgan?
Senator DORGAN. I understand what these hearings are about,

and I share the goal you have. I am a bit skeptical that we over-
come the natural tendency of organizations here. I studied Parkin-
son's laws in graduate school about how organizations work, espe-
cially governments. I guess I must ask the question, if we think
and I happen to thinkthat organizations at the top in Govern-
ment are some of the most bloated, inefficient, overstaffed organi-
zations I have ever seenand I think that because last year, going
through a waste report, I looked at staffing levels of virtually every
agency in the Federal Government. How many people did this
agency have in legislative affairs? And you look over to legislative
affairs in this little agency, and you find 32 people. And you go,
holy cow, how do you get 32 people in legislative affairs? How
about public affairs? You find a couple of hundred people in this
agency, and you wonder, how on earth could that happen?

So I think there is an enormous amount of waste and inefficiency
and bureaucracy at the top that is nailed in. And the question I
have is: What gives you confidence that when we do this we are
going to have an impact in really cutting the bureaucracy where it
exists?

Mr. Roth keeps asking the question, if we buy out somebody and
you say we are buying out a job, not a person, we are going to
eliminate this position, this job, how do you know they are not sim-
ply going to replace that person in that job? You say because we
are going to incentivize the managers to make those decisions. But
what gives you confidence that they are not going to just behave
the way Government always behaves?

Mr. KING. Well, I think, SenatorI am facing a 4 percent cut
this year. I am now into that fiscal year. I will receive another 8
percent cut next October 1. So when I am talking about manage-
ment to budget, sir, it is not theoretical. I have to make a decision
that if I wish to keep a particular function, whatever it is, I have
to trade off something else.

It is no longer the game, the shell game, lots of smoke, lots of
mirrors, and Oz talking to you. We are now real.

Senator DORGAN. But is it not easier to decide to stretch out 24
or 48 hours the Social Security processing goal as opposed to losing
3 or 4 people that are comfortable around you every day? I mean,
I do not understand how you trade off to make sure that what hap-
pens is what we want to happen, that you do not sacrifice service
but instead we try to cut back on the overstaffing at the upper lev-
els of agencies.

Mr. KING. Right now Apple, which was considered one of the bet-
ter managed high-tech firms, is cutting back 15,000 people. Does
that mean that Apple has had an incompetent management team?
I would submit no. They are facing a new set of realities, a new
set of budgets.

IBM, when we were talking about having tenured employment,
IBM and the telephone company probably were the closest to ten-
ure of civil service in my lifetime, sir. And I do not think anyone
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would submit at this moment that that is true today. And I am
talking about major cutbacks.

The question you raise, then, is: What are the incentives, then,
for senior managers to carry out their responsibilities to the Amer-
ican public and to their own organization? And I would like to sub-
mit that what we are going to do is hold people accountable. That
is what Mr. Lader is telling us, and I am taking him at his word
because I think he is a lot tougher than most people understand.

Mr. LADER. Senator, let me add two points. This matter of Gov-
ernment public management reform is really a seamless web. I
learned only a few weeks ago that the Environmental Protection
Agency is subject to the scrutiny of 80 separate committees and
subcommittees of the Congress. When you look at the legislative af-
fairs staff at the Environmental Protection Agencyand I have no
idea how many people are there at this pointone has to take into
account how all of us, the legislative and the executive branch,
need to be very serious about the matter of the right-sizing of the
Government.

The second point is this: As Mr. King pointed out, the specific
plans to be submitted by each agency will be reviewed by OMB.
But the real accountability continues to be in the budget, managing
to budget. Under the Budget Enforcement Act, we are having what
is effectively a 10 percent reduction in all other discretionary
spending next year to fund the President's investment programs in
1995. That is a fact of life. And if individual managers are seeking
to keep the same number of employees, if they are seeking to use
these buyouts and simply replace with other individuals of the
same category, then that is very imprudent management. And,
Senator Dorgan, you are very correct that it is human nature to
make mistakes, and there will be mistakes. But we are hoping that
the combined emphasis of the Congress and of this administration
to greater attention to public management will result in greater ac-
countability and performance.

Senator DORGAN. Thank you very much. Let me say I have great
confidence in the three of you. I think you all come to these posi-
tions with substantial backgrounds. And I am encouraged by what
we are talking about. Just talking about this issue is a breath of
fresh air, and we need to make some changes. I would encourage
you all to read in the memory of recently departed C. Northcott
Parkinson some of his missives. Let me just leave you with one,
Mr. Chairman. He described an inverse relationship in war be-
tween the number of enemy killed on one side and the number of
generals on the other.

Thank you very much. Mr. Chairman, thank you.
Chairman GLENN. Thank you, Senator Dorgan.
The disagreement between CBO and OMB was discussed earlier.

Are there efforts made, are you talking to those people at CBO to
try and resolve this? If we do not resolve it some way or get some
kind of agreement on this, it means what we are faced with here
is going to the floor with this, when it goes, and trying to get a
budget waiver, and that requires 60 votes, and that gets tougher.
Either that, or put something in this bill which would give us that
waiver in advance of going to the floor. A much preferable way
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would be for you and CBO to come to some agreement. Is there any
activity along that line?

Mr. LADER. Well, Leon Panetta and I will be addressing this with
the appropriate individuals there, but I would hope that a question
of scoring like this does not defeat something which common sense
would point out is not costing additional funds and helps to im-
prove the performance of our Federal Government.

I should say, Mr. Chairman, too, you notice that Dr. Northcott
Parkinson, Parkinson's laws, did not have any comment about the
percentage of colonels to the success in warfare. So at least the
Senator was very prudent in his reference.

Chairman GLENN. One thing I think that we need so that we can
gauge this and try and put our judgment on it as to how effective
we think the legislation will be, one thing we need is historically
what have the attrition rates have been by different GS levels.
think that is very important because that is what we are talking
about, changing those ratios. That is the basic purpose of this. And
unless we have those to know what the attrition

Mr. KING. We can get that for the record.
Chairman GLENN. That we have to have so we can judge what

can be taken care of just by attrition, at what levels, even though
attrition levels overall are down to a fairly low level right now. But
I think if we had those going back a number of years, I think that
would help us, and do it by the different GS levels.

INSERT FOR THE RECORD

SEPARATION RATES OF CIVILIAN EMPLOYEES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE,
FY 19931

Grade Neal Number of
employees

Separation
rate

(percent)

GS-1 78 29.5
GS-2 842 23.1
GS-3 9,733 11.9
GS-4 43,411 10.1
GS -5 79,748 8.7
GS-6 45,370 7.3
OS-7 58,988 7.8
GS-8 10,868 7.9
GS-9 69,147 8.1
OS-10 8,705 10.6
GS-11 99,719 7.3
GS-12 115.867 5.9
GS/GM-13 53,576 5.8
GS/GM-14 24227 5.8
GSIGM-15 10.275 0.8

Total 826,132 7.5

' permanent employees only.
'Exclude, transfers out to other fp." o' ral Jobs.

Chairman GLENN. Then you were going to get some information
on that, Mr. Dorn, I believe, to see what the experience has been
over there so th we have maybe a little track record on that for
the past year.

Mr. DORN. Yes, sir, we will.
Chairman GLENN. All right. Good.
Mr. KING. Mr. Chairman, in order for clarification of records, and

I understand this iswould the Department of Defense know
whether the unit was being closed down entirely or what percent-

42



age of the unit was being reduced so it would be of help? Other-
wise, you might be left with apples and oranges.

Chairman GLENN. You are not coming at it from the same base
unless we do have some of that kind of information. I think you
are right. So as much as you can provide as to where some of these
things came from, because I do not think the DOD experience is
directly applicable to all of Government because you have been in
a different situation the last year or so.

Mr. Dom. That is right, Senator. As I said earlier, we started
with a different goal in mind, which was merely to avoid these in-
voluntary separations. But we can tell you a lot about what the ef-
fect has been on grade structure.

Chairman GLENN. Mr. Lader, are you also looking for or hoping
that different departments and agencies will come in with a really
different organizational plan so that we really restructure some of
these agencies? Are you looking for that?

Mr. LADER. Program by program, yes, over the mid- and long-
term. I think it is unrealistic, Mr. Chairman, to expect that for fis-
cal year 1995 there is a major revision of the organization of a par-
ticular agency or department. But we are looking in these plans for
not only, as you suggest, the de-layering, the thinning of the head-
quarters staff, close attention to the respective use of regional and
field offices, but also fundamental reorganization which is used in
the business sector today as business process re-engineering, a very
close attention to administrative processes and how the job should
get done differently. Over the mid term, 2 to 4 years, we believe
that can be accomplished.

Chairman GLENN. Well, will you be looking particularly for agen-
cies to come back in, then, with a reorganization structure? I am
not sure I understood your answer there. You said we want to
in other words, we have talked a lct about taking the end product,
and we are going to gauge the end product out here. Are we deli v-
eking better services to the American people with fewer people? So
you start with that out here. What is the service we want to per-
form? Then you back up and say how many people does it take to
de that.

It seems to me in many agencies or departments that would
mean people have to take a whole new look at how they are orga-
nized.

Mr. LADER. We agree, Mr. Chairman. What we are saying, how-
ever, is we are not asking every agency to revise its organization
chart because moving boxes sometimes is not a very cost-effective
means of changing the organization. We believe that for certain
programs, bureaus, agencies, that may be appropriate and we will
be encouraging it. And we are certainly going to put them to the
test of what reorganization have you undertaken. But I do not
want to represent to you that OMB is requiring that there is a
drastic reorganization.

Chairman GLENN. No. I did not mean that. But if agencies want
to take that on, you would welcome that, I trust.

Mr. LADER. It would be encouraged.
Chairman GLENN. For instance, Mr. King said he is going to de-

layer starting at the top. Now, what do you have as your objective
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there within OPM? Maybe that is not a typical agency of Govern-
ment.

Mr. KING. Fewer people and a lower budget. And I think I can
give better service by doing that.

Chairman GLENN. All right. Now, maybe you do not have the
field organizations where you can disperse some of these things
out, but maybe you do. Do you plan to do some of that within your
agency?

Mr. KING. I would like to make my field operation far more en-
trepreneurial. I have a number of areas within my agency where
I believe I can see the services. I intend to go out there and aggres-
sively sell. I do not think there is anything wrong with free enter-
prise in Government.

Chairman GLENN. Do you have a target ratio just within your
own organization that you hope to hit within the next year, 1, 2,
3, 4, 5 years

Mr. KING. The lowest number you would accept, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman GLENN. I am sorry?
Mr. KING. The lowest number you would accept, Mr. Chairman.

[Laughter.]
Chairman GLENN. Well, I am looking for about a 20 to 1 ratio

in OMB next year, if you want me to set a figure for you.
Mr. KING. No, we havewe believe that we have more than

abundant supervisors.
Chairman GLENN. Do you know what your ratio is right now of

managers to workers at the lower levels, the 13, 14, 15's to lower
levels within OMB itself?

Mr. KING. I do not have the exact numbers. I can get them for
you.

Chairman GLENN. If you can get them for us for the record, be-
cause where you start from obviously is

Mr. KING. Oh, yes.
Chairman GLENN. For all of Government you have an objective

of doubling within 5 years.
Mr. KING. Right.
Chairman GLENN. I trust that would mean we are going to try

and upgrade one notch per year at least through hem, from this
7 to 1 ratio we have. At the end of this time period, shouldn't we
expect to be somewhere between 12 and 14?

Mr. KING. I would like to come back next year, and as we ex-
plore, as we go through the budget process, I am certainly going
to be pointing to that and exploring it fully. That is certainly con-
sistent with

Chairman GLENN. Because that is going to be our yardstick, I
think, that we measure both of these things. That is the objective
you set up in the NPR, and it is the objective we are going to want
to talk about here because I really think you are on the right track
with changing the ratios. But how you do it is something else
again, and that is what we arc all about here today.

Mr. LADER. Mr. Chairman, if I might respectfully make one cor-
rection. The best data that have been presented to the National
Performance Review that I have seen suggest that in the private
sector the ratio of major corporations is 1 to 15 compared to 1 to
7 in the Federal Government. So you are right, there is vast im-
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provement required, but 1 to 20 or 1 to 25 as has been referenced
earlier, frankly may be less than productive in terms of the need
for accountability.

Chairman GLENN. I understand that, and it gets into another
question I have. But my time is up right now. Senator Roth?

Senator ROTH. First of all, Mr. Chairman, I would like to have
in the record both the estimates of CBO and OMB as to the cost
of this legislation.

INSERT FOR THE RECORD

The agency payments for the voluntary separation incentive would be made from
appropriations within the discretionary caps. The separation incentives would re-
quire no additional budget resources. For this reason, OMB would not score any dis-
cretionary costs associated with this bill.

Furthermore, the bill would not change retirement law and hence would not be
scored for pay-as-you-go purposes. By encouraging separations, the incentive may
increase retirement, but this increase is not a direct effect of the legislation. The
rules for retirement remain unchanged. It has been OMB's view that the Budget
Enforcement Act specifies the OMB score only the direct effects of legislation. Be-
cause OMB's scoring is used to determine the need for a sequester, the separation
incentive would not trigger a sequester under the Budget Enforcement Act.

However, any costs to the retirement fund that result from early annuity pay-
ments and foregone employee contributions are offset by reductions in annuities and
the proposed 9 percent contribution from the agency. Therefore, when considered
over the longer term, this proposal is cost neutral with respect to the retirement
program.

Senator ROTH. Secondly, Mr. Lader, as I understand the position
of the administration, it is that we should rely on the budget, the
reductions of the budget to ensure the reduction in personnel. You
talk about a 10 percent reduction next year. A 10 percent in the
budget from what?

Mr. LADER. I am simply saying under the Budget Enforcement
Act, as we are dealing with what is the practical impact for each
Secretary or Director of an agency, planning their internal budget.
And Mr. King can speak to the example of OPM, for example.
There are fewer dollars that that agency has to manage with.

Senator RoTH. You specifically used earlier the figure a 10 per-
cent reduction in budget.

Mr. LADER. Simply referred to under the Budget Enforcement
Act. The caps would require something to the amount of about a
10 percent of other discretionary spending in order to fund the
President's investment programs in 1995.

Senator ROTH. But nobody really knows what is going to happen
to discretionary budgets in the future, do they?

Mr. LADER. The last 9 months
Senator Rom. We still have to act on those for each year.
Mr. LADER. That is right, and even next week we will be coming

back with a package, as you know, to address even further this ad-
ministration's desire to reduce Government spending.

Senator ROTH. Although many of those budgets are in excess of
inflation that has been enacted by Congress to date. Isn't that cor-
rect?

Mr. LADER. To the extent of my knowledge.
Senator ROTH. Let me ask you, Mr. King, in your testimony you

note that normal attrition rates have recently fallen from 17 per-
cent to less than 5 percent in fiscal year 1991, 1992. You go on to
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say that clearly an inducement is needed to encourage retirementsat this time.
Why, in your opinion, have retirements fallen off so dramati-cally?
Mr. KING. I think there are a couple of things, Senator. I think

the economy has contributed to it. I do not think people feel as
comfortable going out. I think there is a general uncertainty. I
think the business page yesterday or the past few days has indi-
cated, you know, the uncertainty of the entire labor force. We are
talking about stress and everything else.

We are talking about many individuals who historically had gone
out into the private sector at a given age, taken their retirement,
and still continued to do productive work. For example, in our
agency, for investigators, we used to have a very substantial num-ber of investigators turning over on a regular basis, Senator. Vir-
tually no one has left our investigative unit this past year. We used
to have a very, very substantial number turn over.

What we are able to see firsthand or I am able to see firsthand
is that the jobs are not out there. The job salaries are not out
there. The kinds of conditions, the stability in the benefits are not
out there. And so the combination of those ingredients has led to
the kind of stability we are seeing, and this basically is the pump
primer that we have seen work.

Senator Rom. There could be two additional factors. You know,there have been rumors, of course, around the agencies that this
kind of a buyout is going to take place. How much of an impacthas that had?

Mr. KING. Oh, I think it has an impact, Senator. There is no
question. On the other hand, I just went to a gentleman to say
farewell up in Pennsylvania who retired just a few weeks ago who
had been with the Government almost 30 years. So it affects some,
and it does not affect others.

People act in what they view as their own best interest, but, Sen-
ator, as you have noted and noted quite clearly, it has dropped to
5 percent or a little below now for the past few years. I am not sure
whether everyone, you know, has waited merely for this oppor-
tunity, although I would be less than candid, Senator, if 1 did not
think that there is a pent-up reserve that has hung in the last
year.

Senator Rom. Also, do you expect a large turnover next year be-
cause Senior Executive Service employees will have the high 3? In
other words, do you estimate the number of people who have de-
layed retirement in order to qualify for a larger so-called high 3 re-
tirement benefit as a result of the 1990 pay raise?

Mr. KING. That is ever an excellent question, Senator. It was
funny. My very first reading prior to coming to this job was a docu-
ment that had. been produced, I think it was from GAO, telling us
about that we should anticipate one-third of our senior executives
retiring already this year. I think that was the second year in a
row they wrote that particular item. It has not happened.

There is pent-up interest that we believe is there, but it has not
happened. But according to every statistic and the numbers and ev-
erything else, Senator, your observation is not only valid, it ap-
pears to be exactly right.
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Senator Rom. The 3 years, of course, are not up until next Janu-
ary.

Let me ask you a question about RIF. I believe you characterized
the use of separation incentives as a more humane way. Is there
something we should be doing to reform RIFs if they are not hu-
mane?

Mr. KING. I think anyone losing their job at any time, it is a
trauma. I think every psychological report I have seen equates it
with death or divorce, etc. So that it is a trauma. I believe there
was just a study out talking about the stress related to job violence
in the private sector. I believe 730 people were killed just last year
because of the acting out of this kind of stress within the work-
place. And what we are suggesting here, is there a better way to
do it and an economical way to do it, and I believe this is it.

Senator Rom. In other words, you are having volunteers here in
contrast to

Mr. KING. Yes. That is it exactly, Senator.
Senator Rom. Let me ask you about employee pay-back of the

incentive. What if an employee accepts the voluntary separation in-
centive and returns to executive branch employment within 5
years? What rights does the Federal Government have to recover
this incentive?

Mr. KING. They are not supposed to be hired unless either they
or the agency pays the full amount back.

Senator Rom. If I recall right, don't you retain some rights to
make an exception? Let's say you need someone. Can he be hired
back?

Mr. KING. Sure. This is a safety valve, as you know, Senator. If
there were some pressing, really serious, emergency or time gap
where you needed somebody on this basis, you have to document
it and then act. This safety valve is not intended to be used except
in an emerny.

Senator . But the Government would have no rights to re-
cover the incentive if they come back?

Mr. KING. We could waive the repayment requirement if the em-
ployment is in a position for which there is exceptional difficulty
in recruiting a qualified employee. The head of the agency would
have to request a waiver and document the shortage of qualified
applicants.

Senator Rom. Mr. Chairman, could I ask you thai we keep the
record open so that we can submit questions in writing?

Chairman GLENN. Yes, sure. We keep it open 10 days. Would
that be OK, or do you want more?

Senator ROTH. That is fine. Thank you.
Chairman GLENN. Fine. Ten days.
Senator Pryor has joined us. I was just about to ask unanimous

consent that his statement that he wanted included in the record
be included, and it will be without objection.

Senator PRYOR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR PRYOR

I am pleased to be a cosponsor of S. 1535, the Federal Workforce Restructuring
Act of 1993, and I thank the Chairman for holding these hearings today. The bill,
recommended by the National Performance Review, would establish separation in-
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centives or buyouts to help soften the impact of eliminating 252,000 Federal jobsover the next 5 years.
There has been a lot of discussion about the origin of this number in the lastweek. As I understand it, it is a target which includes the 140,000 Federal jobs that

Congress has already decided to cut in this year's deficit reduction measure. The252,000 also includes the DOD civilian workforce reductions which are already un-derway. In a more global sense, it means an increase in productivity for a trimmer
Federal workforce of about 2 percent per yearnot an unreasonable expectation!

Simply offering early retirements to encourage voluntary separations will notachieve the reduction recommended by NPR nor the estimated budget savings of$108 billion over 5 years. Less than 5 percent of eligible employees took the early
retirement option in 1991 and 1992. However, early retirement plus some type of
incentive has encouraged 20 percent of eligible DOD employees; 26 percent of eligi-
ble Postal employees; and 38 percent of eligible Office of Thrift Supervision employ-ees to elect retirement. This experience shows that incentives work. They also mini-mize the use of reductions in force which could disproportionately affect women andminorities. There should be no surprise that incentives work because the privatosector has been using them for years.

As with all legislation, some refinements in the bill may be necessary to ensurethat the Federal workforce reductions are meaningful while preserving a quality
workforce for the future. Planning is vital and the program's overall success will de-pend on how well each agency can manage and shape its workforce. Otherwise, we
may end up wasting taxpayers' dollars by hiring new employees to fill key vacancies
or, worse yet, hiring contractors and consultants to fill the void. We also need todetermine whether some safeguards are needed to protect employees from being co-
erced into resigning or retiring. We need to explore whether each agency will be
able to provide employees with the advice they need in order to make an informed
decision. Finally, as an inducement for retirees to take the incentives, we may want
to consider deferring the payment of the buyout or the payment of unused annual
leave for one year to alleviate the tax effect.

Another issue of concern is that CBO has determined that there is a "pay as yougo" problem with the bill, although OMB disagrees. The problem is allegedly caused
by increasing the payouts from the Retirement Fund by increasing the number of
employees who leave the payroll and begin their annuities earlier than anticipated.
In other words, decreasing the number of Federal employees costs money even
though an annuity is obviously less than the salary the retiree received. Once again,the budget rules make no sense. Even Senator Roth's early out bill, which does not
include incentive payments, has a "pay as you go" problem.

When I visited civilian employees at Eaker Air Force Base in Blytheville, Arkan-
sas, in February 1992, who were facing the closing of their base, it became clear
to me that preventive measures were needed to help DOD employees avoid layoffs.I am pleased to have worked with DOD in designing the- separation incentives on
which S. 1635 is modeled. DOD first offered separation incentives on January 19,
1993, and, since then, nearly 30,000 employees have left the Department avoidingthousands of involuntary separations.

I look forward to this morning's hearing and working with Senator Glenn and oth-ers on this legislation.

Chairman GLENN. Did you want to go, or do you want me to go
ahead?

Senator PRYOR. No, go ahead.
Chairman GLENN. Fine. I was about to ask a question on behalf

of Senator Pryor, one that I knew that he would ask if was here.
I will not do that. I will let him do it himself. He has been a real
tiger on this particular one through the year. I will let him ILAthat one.

This is a 1-year bill, right?
Mr. KING. Yes, sir.
Chairman GLENN. Now, we are already pretty well into this

quarter here, so we are beginning to lose time. By the time we get
this thing through, if we get it through this yearand I certainlyhope we doit seems to me we are going to get caught a little
short on time. Should we be making this a multi-year effort, or is
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there some addition we would make since we are now encroaching
on the time we had hoped this would be effective?

Mr. KING. I know in my agency I have taken a look. If I know
that the authority is coming and I have it prior to the 1st of the
yearI need it sooner if I can, but if I know it is definitely coming,
for me the break date is basically the 30th of January. Anyone I
can get into that windowand that is why I was asking that 90
days not be made compulsory, but 90 days be the optimal window.
In my case, in order to maintain it within the context of what Mr.
Lader has saidthat is, that it be budget-neutral, and that I ab-
sorb it within my budget this fiscal yearfor most of the people to
whom I might be able to make this offer, it would have to be done
by the 30th of January.

Chairman GLENN. Mr. Lader, you have had a lot of experience
in management matters. What do you think? Can we do this in this
time period of only 9 months if we got this thing passed? Or should
we be stretching it out a little?

Mr. LADER. A more idealistic situation, we would want to stretch
it out and have far more deliberation and more detailed planning.
But given the urgency and given the fact that all of these matters
are inter-relatedthe reduction of internal regulations, the im-
provement of customer service, the downsizing, right-sizingit is
really very important that we give it immedi,Nte attention and get
this passed as soon as possible.

As Mr. King has pointed out, even though there is the 90-day
window in this period, it is possible for the targeted jobs to be ad-
dressed for the separation to occur in the next fiscal year. And so
there is management discretion in that, and we believe that as pre-
sented, if it is passed as soon as possible, it will serve our manage-
ment objectives.

Chairman GLENN. Would it help if we made this a year from en-
actment?

Mr. KING. It would kill me if you are saying a year from enact-
ment, because I have got a fiscal year. This gentleman on my
rightI was going to refer to him in less complimentary terms, but
I am still managing to budget my own agency. I have got to tidy
my little house up and have it tidy to take my next cut. And what
I would like to do is I would like to front-end-load---

Chairman GLENN. Well, let me take a worst-case scenario here
and say we do not get this thing through before the end of the year,
and we are still working on it, and we come back in in January
and get it through, and it is March or something. You have lost 2
quarters. I was thinking of giving you a year to do all these
buyouts and things rather than tying it to a fiscal year.

Mr. LADER. Mr. Chairman, we would not be as pleased with that
for this reason: I think we owe it to the families of the many Fed-
eral workers who have to deal with whether this applies to them
or not. We have to take into account the managers who want to im-
prove the performance of the agencies. And as you know, this pe-
riod of ambiguity, if you stretch it out for an additional 12 months,
would make management far more difficult and make the home life
and personal planning of these families much more difficult. So I
would urge the Committee, like my drill sergeant said when I was
in the Army, "Son, run not as fast as you could, but run as fast
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as you wish you could." And I hope that is the kind of action the
Congress will be taking on this legislation.

Chairman GLENN. Well, I hope so, too, and I appreciate your con-
cern for the families, and I think that is a real concern, something
we ought to consider. I am on your side on this. I was trying to
give you a little bit more time to accomplish it rather than tighten
up on it. That is all.

OK. Senator Pryor?
Senator PRYOR. Yes, thank you, Senator Glenn, Mr. Chairman.

I apologize for not being here today. I am proud to be a cosponsor
of S. 1535, Mr. Chairman, with you. I am pleased to have worked
closely with you and your staff on this concept. It has been a real
pleasure to also work with Mr. King, Mr. Lader, Mr. Dorn, and oth-
ers in developing this concept.

Mr. Chairman, I apologize I have not been here this morning. I
have been in a Finance Committee meeting, and I may have to re-
turn to the Finance Committee momentarily. I understand there
has been a lively discussion on the number of 252,000 people.

In a more global sense, I think what we are going to end up with
when we finish thisand it is not going to be easy, it is not going
to be quickis a more productive Federal workforce. I think this
is healthy, and I think our taxpayers out there would certainly
think it made good sense because, after all, they are paying for
these services, anyway.

The concern that I have had, Mr. Chairman, all along with the
development of this billis that we may reach that point, when fi-
nally the managers and the agency directors say, wait a minute,
we have cut our workforce back so deeply, that now we have to go
out and hire contractors and consultants to do this work to replace
them.

I hope that we an not going to .fall into that trap. This is a prac-
tice that has become all too much a part of the modus operandi of
our Federal workforce, and even our State workforces out there.
There is a great trend now throughout the whole public sector to
let public employees go and to replace them with private contrac-
tors who are basically unresponsive. This is a very grave problem,
I think, in the esprit de corps, the feeling that the employees have
for not only their position but certainly their worth, and some-
times, of course, their lack of worth.

Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to make those comments, and I
would like to have the opportunity to follow on with some ques-
tions.

Chairman GLENN. That would be fine.
Senator PRYOR. If you would keep the hearing record open.
Chairman GLENN. The hearing record will be kept open.
Senator PRYOR. Thank you. I thank the panel.
Chairman GLENN. His comment on contracting out is what I was

going to do on behalf if he had not arrived. He has been on this
subject for a long time, and with good cause.

One other question here. Do you foresee the possibility that any
of these buyout offers would be made in an agency or an agency
manager would make an offer to someone who, in effect, is dead
wood, is not performing in the agency, and get them out of the way
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so you could get a more efficient manager in that place? Is that an-
other use of this?

Mr. LADER. Again, we emphasize this legislation is targeting
buyouts at positions, not at individuals. And so the specific goal is
to look at the geographic, the mission of that particular bureau or
agency, and the like, but not to look to the performance of individ-
uals. To the extent that there is a different need of skills that is
targeted, that is permissible, but not to look to individuals. But Mr.
King probably could add to that.

Mr. KING. Well, as you have suggested, the tree of Government
will be pruned. I am assuming the pruning will be live wood and
dead wood that will fall to the base of it. I do not think it is the
intent to do strictly dead wood. I think we are talking about prun-
ing the entire orchard so we can have a better crop next year.

Chairman GLENN. All right. Good. Maybe that is a good way to
end this whole thing this morning here unless you have anything
else. Senator Pryor, do you have any other questions?

Senator PRYOR. No.
Chairman GLENN. Any additional comments, Mr. Dorn? You com-

mitted to several pieces of information here to get back to us with.
Each one of you did, I guess.

Mr. DORN. Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman GLENN. I hope you do that as soon as possible. We will

keep the record open for 10 days. We hope you could respond with-
in that period of time as an objective. Our staffs can work back and
forth with you, and we appreciate your being here this morning.
We will do everything we can to move this alone. Obviously there
are a number of questions we have on the Committee here, and we
will be working on it just as fast as we can. Thank you very much.

The Committee will stand in recess subject to the call of the
Chair.

[Whereupon, at 11:57 a.m., the Committee was adjourned subject
to the call of the Chair.]
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S. 1535

II

To amend title 5, United States Code, to eliminate narrow restrictions on
employee training, to provide a temporary voluntary separation incentive,
and for other purposes.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES
OCTOBER 7 (legislative day, SEPTEMBER 27), 1993

Mr. GLENN (for himself, Mr. STEN%iNS, and Mr. PRYOR) introduced the fol-
lowing bill; which was read twice and referred to the Committee on Gov-
ernmental Affairs

A BILL
To amend title 5, United States Code, to eliminate narrow

restrictions on employee training, to provide a temporary
voluntary separation incentive, and for other purposes.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 tires of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

4 This Act may be cited as the "Federal Workforce Re-

5 structuring Act of 1993".

6 SEC. 2. EMPLOYEE TRAINING.

7 (a) IN GENERAL.Chapter 41 of title 5, United

8 States Code, is amended 52
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2

1 (1) in section 4101(4) by striking out "fields"

2 and all that follows through the semicolon and in-

3 serting in lieu thereof "fields which will improve in-

4 dividual and organizational performance and assist

5 in achieving the agency's mission and performance

6 goals;";

7 (2) in section 4103-

8 (A) in subsection (a) by striking out "In"

9 and all that follows through "proficiency" and

10 inserting in lieu thereof "In order to assist in

11 achieving an agency's mission and performance

12 goals by improving employee and organizational

13 performance"; and

14 (B) in subsection (b)-

15 (i) in paragraph (1) by striking out

16 "determines" and all that follows through

17 the period and inserting in lieu thereof

18 "determines that such training would be in

19 the interests of the Government.";

20 (ii) by striking out paragraph (2) and

21 redesignating paragraph (3) as paragraph

22 (2); and

23 (iii) in subparagraph (C) of paragraph

24 (2) (as redesignated under clause (ii) of

25 this subparagraph) by striking out "retain-

*8 1535 10
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3

1 ing" and all that follows through the pe-

2 riod and inserting in lieu thereof "such

3 training.";

4 (3) in section 4105-

5 (A) in subsection (a) by striking out "(a)";

6 and

7 (B) by striking out subsections (b) and (c);

8 (4) by repealing sect ion 4106;

9 (5) in section 4107-

10 (A) by amending the section heading to

11 read as follows:

12 '14107. Restriction on degree training";

13 (B) by striking out subsections (a) and (b)

14 and redesignating subsections (c) and (d) as

15 subsections (a) and (b), respectively;

16 (C) by amending subsection (a) (as redes-

17 ignated under subparagraph (B) of this para-

18 graph)
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

(i) by striking out "subsection (d)"

and inserting in lieu thereof "subsection

(b)"; and

(ii) by striking out "by, in, or through

a non-Government facility"; and

(D) by amending paragraph (1) of sub-

section (b) (as redesignated under subpara-

.8 1636 18
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1 graph (B) of this paragraph) by striking out

2 "subsection (c)" and inserting in lieu thereof

3 "subsection (a)";

4 (6) in section 4108(a) by striking out "by, in,

5 or through a non-Government facility under this

6 chapter" and inserting in lieu thereof "for more

7 than a minimum period prescribed by the head of

8 the agency";

9 (7) in section 4113(b) by striking out all that

10 1:* lows the first sentence;

11 (8) by repealing section 4114; and

12 (9) in section 4118-

13 (A) in subsection (a)(7) by striking out

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

"by, in, and through non-Government facili-

ties";

(B) by striking out subsection (b); and

(C) by redesignating subsections (e) and

(d) as subsections (b) and (c), respectively.

(b) TECHNICAL AND CONFORMING AMENDMENTS.

The table of sections for chapter 41 of title 5, United

States Code, is amended

(1) by striking out the items relating to sections

4106 and 4114; and

(2) by amending the item relating to section

4107 to read as follows:

"4107. Restriction on degree training.".
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1 (c) EFFECTIVE DATE.The amendments made by

2 this section shall take effect on the date of enactment of

3 this Act.

4 SEC. 3. VOLUNTARY SEPARATION INCENTIVES.

5 (a) DEFINITIONS. --For purposes of this section, the

6 term-
7 (1) "agency" means an Executive agency, as

8 defined under section 105 of title 5, United States

9 Code, but does not include the Department of De-

10 fense, the Central Intelligence Agency, or the Gen-

11 eral Accounting Office; and

12 (2) "employee" means an employee, as defined

13 under section 2105 of title 5, United States Code,

14 of an agency, serving under an appointment without

15 time limitation, who has been currently employed for

16 a continuous period of at least 12 months, including

17 an individual employed by a county committee estab-

18 lished under section 8(b) of the Soil Conservation

19 and Domestic Allotment Act (16 U.S.C. 590h(b)),

20 but does not include-

21 (A) a reemployed annuitant under sub-

22 chapter III of chapter 83 or chapter 84 of title

23 5, United States Code, or another retirement

24 system for employees of the Government; or

15311
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1 (B) an employee having a disability on the

2 basis of which such employee is or would be eli-

3 Bible for disability retirement under the applica-

4 ble retirement system referred to in subpara-

5 graph (A).

6 (b) AUTHORITY To MAKE PAYMENT.-(1) In order

7 to assist in the restructuring of the Federal workforce

8 while minimizing involuntary separations, the head of an

9 agency may pay, or authorize the payment of, a voluntary

10 ser aration incentive payment to employees-

11 (A) in any component of the agency;

12 (B) in any occupation;

13 (C) in any geographic location; or

14 (D) on the basis of any combination of the fac-

15 tors described under subparagraphs (A) through

16 (C).

17 (2) In order to receive an incentive payment under

18 paragraph (1), an employee shall separate from service

19 with the agency (whether by retirement or resignation)

20 during the 90-day period described under paragraph (3).

21 (3) The head of an agency shall designate a continu-

22 ous 90-day period for purposes of separation under this

23 subsection for such agency or any component thereof.

24 Such 90-day period shall begin no earlier than the date

au is 5 7
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1 of the enactment of this Act and shall end no later than

2 September 30, 1994.

3 (4) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs (2)

4 and (3), an employee may receive an incentive payment

5 under this section and delay a separation from service if-

6 (A) the agency head determines that it is nee-

7 essary to delay such employee's separation from

8 service in order to ensure the performance of the

9 agency's mission; and

10 (B) no later than 2 years after the date of the

11 last day of the 90-day period designated under para-

12 graph (3), such employee separates from service in

13 the agency.

14 (e) VOLUNTARY SEPARATION INCENTIVE PAY-

15 MENT.-A voluntary separation incentive payment

16

17

18

19

20

21

(1) shall be paid in a lump sum after the em-

ployee's separation;

(2) shall be equal to the lesser of

(A) an amount equal to the amount the

employee would be entitled to receive under sec-

tion 5595(e) of title 5, United States Code, if

22 the employee were entitled to payment under

23 such section; or

24 (B) $25,000;

8 1535 .113
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1 (3) shall not be a basis for payment, and shall

2 not be included in the computation, of any other

3 type of Government benefit;

4 (4) shall not be taken into account in determin-

5 ing the amount of any severance pay to which an

6 employee may be entitled under section 5595 of title

7 5, United States Code, based on any other separa-

8 tion; and

9 (5) shall be paid from appropriations or funds

10 available for the payment of the basic pay of the em-

11 ployee.

12 (d) SUBSEQUENT EMPLOYMENT AND REPAYMENT OF

13 INCENTIVE PAYMENT.-(1) An employee who has received

14 a voluntary separation incentive payment under this sec-

15 tion and accepts employment with the Government of the

16 United States within 5 years of the date of the separation

17 on which payment of the incentive is based shall be re-

18 quired to repay the entire amount of the incentive pay-

19 ment to. the agency that paid the incentive payment.

20 (2) If the employment is with an Executive agency

21 (as defined under section 105 of title 5, United States

22 Code), the Director of the Office of Personnel Manage-

23 ment may, at the request of the head of ti, agency, waive

24 the repayment if the employment is in a position for which

111181 to
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1 there is exceptional difficulty in recruiting a qualified em-

2 ployee.

3 (3) If the employment is with an entity in the legisla-

4 tive branch, the head of the entity or the appointing offi-

5 eial may waive the repayment if the employment is in a

6 position for which there is .exceptional difficulty in recruit-

7 ing a qualified employee.

8 (4) If the employment is with the judicial branch, the

9 Director of the Administrative Office of the United States

10 Courts may waive the repayment if the employment is in

I I a position for which there is exceptional difficulty in re-

12 muffing a qualified employee.

13 (e) REGuLATioNs.The Director of the Office of

14 Personnel Management may prescribe any regulations

15 necessary for the administration of this section.

16 (f) JUDICIAL. BRANCH PROGRAM.The Director of

17 the Administrative Office of the United States Courts

.18 may, by regulation, establish a program consistent with

19 the program established by subsections (a) through (d) of

20 this section for employees of the judicial branch.

21 (g) REDUCTION GOALS. It is the sense of Congress

22 that -
23 (1) employment in the executive branch should

24 be reduced by not less than one full-time equivalent

.8 16311 IS 60
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1 position for each 2 employees who are paid voluntary

2 separation incentives under this Act; and

3 (2) each agency should adjust its employment

4 levels to achieve such result.

5 SEC. 4. SUBSEQUENT EMPLOYMENT AND REPAYMENT OF

6 SEPARATION PAYMENT.

7 (a) DEFENSE AGENCY SEPARATION PAY.Section

8 5597 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by adding

9 at the end thereof the following new subsection:

10 "(g)(1) An employee who receives separation pay

11 under this section on the basis of a separation occurring

12 on or after the date of enactment of the Federal

13 Workforce Restructuring Act of 1993 and accepts employ-

14 ment with the Government of the United States within

15 2 years of the date of the separation on which payment

16 of the separation pay is based shall be required to repay

17 the entire amount of the separation pay to the defense

18 agency that paid the separation pay.

19 "(2) If the employment is with an Executive agency

20 (as defined under section 105 of title 5, United States

21 Code), the Director of the Office of Personnel Manage-

22 ment may, at the request of the head of the agency, waive

23 the repayment if the employment is in a position for which

24 there is exceptional difficulty in recruiting a qualified em-

25 ployee.

.8 1535 18
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1 "(3) If the employment is with an entity in the legis-

2 lative branch, the head of the entity or the appointing offi-

3 vial may waive the repayment if the employment is in a

4 position for which there is exceptional difficulty in reeruit-

5 ing a qualified employee.

6 "(4) If the employment is with the judicial branch,

7 the Director of the Administrative Office of the United

8 States Courts may waive the repayment if the employment

9 is in a position for which there is exceptional difficulty

10 in recruiting a qualified employee.".

11 (b) CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY SEPARATION

12 PAYMENT.Section 2(b) of the Central Intelligence Agen-

13 cy Voluntary Separation Pay Act (Public Law 103-36;

14 107 Stat. 104) is amended by adding at the end thereof

15 the following: "An employee who receives separation pay

16 under this section on the basis of a separation occurring

17 on or after the date of the enactment of the Federal

18 Workforce Restructuring Act of 1993 and accepts employ-

19 ment with the Government of the United States within

20 2 years of the date of the separation on which payment

21 of the separation pay is based shall be required to repay

22 the entire amount of the separation pay to the Central

23 Intelligence Agency. If the employment is with an Execu-

24 Live agency (as defined under section 105 of title 5, United

25 States Code), the Director of the Office of Personnel Man-

di lift 18
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1 agement may, at the request of the head of the agency,

2 waive the repayment if the employment is in a position

3 for which there is exceptional difficulty in recruiting a

4 qualified employee. If the employment is with an entity

5 in the legislative branch, the head of the entity or the ap-

6 pointing official may waive the repayment if the employ-

7 meat is in a position for which there is exceptional dif-

8 ficulty in recruiting a qualified employee. If the employ-

9 meat is with the judicial branch, the Director of the Ad-

10 ministrative Office of the United States Courts may waive

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

the repayment if the employment is in a position for which

there is exceptional difficulty in recruiting a onaiified em-

ployee.".

SEC. b. FUNDING OF EARLY RETIREMENTS IN CIVIL SERV-

ICE RETIREMENT SYSTEM.

(a) IN GENERALSection 8334 of title 5, United

States Code, is amended by adding at the end thereof the

following new subsection:

"(1) In addition to any other payments required by

this subchapter, an agency shall remit to the Office for

deposit in the Treasury of the United States to the credit

of the Fund an amount equal to 9 percent of the final

rate of basic pay of each employee of the agency who re-

tires under section 8336(d).".
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1 (b) EFFECTIVE DATE.The amendment made by

2 this section shall apply with respect to retirements occur-

3 ring on or after the date of the enactment of this Act.

0
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Organization of Professional Employees
of the U.S. Department of Agriculture

202-720-4898P.O. pox No, aat WASHINGTON. 0. C. 20044 A 1.140/112 31122100210C

October 18, 1993

Senator John Glenn, Chairman
Committee on Governmental Affairs
SD-340 Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 28510-6250

Dear Senator Glenn:

The Organization of Professional Employees, U.S. Department ofAgriculture (OPEDA) respectfully submits the attached testimony
relating to the "Federal Workforce Restructuring Act of 1993"
which the Committee is scheduled to consider this week.

Sincerely,

tis N. Tho pson
Executive Director
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TESTIMONY SUBMITTED TO THE
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS

By

The ORGANIZATION OF PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES IN
THE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

October 19, 1993

AGRICULTURAL EXTENDED RETIREMENT CREDIT
AN OPTION FOR RETIREMENT

The Organization of Professional Employees in the Department of Agriculture
(OPERA) supports the proposed buyout and early out options to encourage
retirement by Federal Employees. .These and other options are needed if
Congress and Secretary Espy are to achieve desired reductions in the cost
of delivering services and doing business in the Department of Agriculture.

To achieve these goals, Secretary Espy, appearing before the House
Committee on Agriculture on September 29, 1993, proposed to organize the
Department around six basic missions and to reduce the number of agencies
and staff offices in Washington from 43 to 30 and reduce field offices from
3700 to 2500 These actions will reduce costs but will require a large
reduction in Department employees.

6ATIcultural ExtendestRettrement Credit Option

The Organization of Professional Employees in the Department of Agriculture
urges the adoption of Agricultural Ex..r.ded Retirement Credit as an option,
along with buyouts and early outs, to encourage the retirement of USDA
employees in support of the Secretary's initiate and to recognize the loyal
service rendered by Department employees in Cooperativ Federal-State
Programs in education, research, marketing, Inspection, and disease and
pest control. Federal and State Extension Service employees and retirees
who would receive extended credit in the Civil Service Retirement System
generally receive few or no retirement benefits for their prior service in
Cooperative Federal-State service from either Social Security or a State
retirement system.

OPEDA has, for some years, sought legislation to extend credit in the Civil
Service Retirement System iCSRSI to certain individuals for service prior
to January 1, 1984 in twelve gsePelAiiMEORSAI2.51Alg_AftrIQVIAALAi
85ggraml (See Enclosure 2, Background Information, page 5, for a list of
programs). Credit would be extended for such service only if an employee
of a Cooperative Federal-State Program later became subject to CSRS either
as a direct hire Federal employee gi as an employee of a Cooperative State
Extension Service.

Civil Service retirement credit has been extended to an estimated 50,000
employees in the two largest programs, the Cooperative State Extension
Services and county committee activities established to carry out
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provisions of the Agricultural Adjustment Acts of 1933 and 1938 and related
statutes. However. there remain approximately 1.80Q currently employed or
retired Federal employees with periods of prior service in twelve
Cooperative Federal -St,
jndividuals who have not received extended credit for such service.
Enactment of legislation for prior service in these programs would correct
a long-standing inequity for the small and rapidly shrinking number of
individuals and their survivors.

1 v I .

ljpoact of Extended Credit on Retirement and Net Federal 60s1 Reductions

Based on the information provided by beneficiaries. extending Civil Service
retirement credit for prior service in Cooperative Federal-State
Agricultural Programs would have the following favorable impacts on costs
and retirements. (Summarized from Appendix A). These estimates are
consistent with estimates made by the Congressional Budget Office.
(Enclosure ))

to

Number of employees that would retire

Reduced salary and a6sociated employee costs

1j94 1994-1998
Number

504 653

SHillion
36.3 209.7

increases outlays from the Civil Service
Retirement Fund 45 4

Net Federal cost reductions due to
employees retiring as a result of
extending Civil Service retirement credit 30.2

67
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APPENDIX A

ESTIMATED IMPACTS ON EXPENDITURES AND EMPLOYMENT
OF AGRICULTURAL EXTENDED RETIREMENT CREDIT LEGISLATION

(Fiscal Years)

1224 1995 1996 1997 1998 5 Year' Lifetime

NUMBER OF EMeLOYEES
NumberTHAT WOULD RETIRE

With the Bill 564 50 47 44 42 653

Without the Bill 151 109 98 79 57 475

RETIREMENT ANNUITIES
Employees S Million

With a Bill 12.2 13.3 14.2 15.1 15.9 70.8 382.1

Without a Bill 3.4 5.8 7.9 9.6 10.7 37.4 293.0

Increase 8.8 7.5 6.3 5.6 5.2 33.4 88.3

Retirees 4.3 4.2 4.0 3.9 3.7 20.1 47.3

REDEPOSITS 32_ J11,2_ 9.7

DIRECT MUMS OF
THE CULL_SERVICE
RETIREMENT FUND 6.1 11.4 10.1 9.2 8.7 45.4 125.9

REDUCTIONS IN
BPPROPRIATED SPENDING 36.3 39.4 42.2 44.8 47.0 209.7 209.7

NET REDUCTIONS
IN FEDERAL SRENDIAQ
FROM EXTENDED CREDIT 30.2 28.) 32.1 35.6 38.3 164.3 83.7

ASSUMPTIONS

Number of beneficiaries 1.800

Current employees 1,008

Retirees 792

Average number of years
of Extended Credit 6.0

Average Grade Grade 12 Step 5

Average high-3 salary 545,000

Beneficiaries will retire an average of 4 years earlier
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ESTIMATING EXPENDITURES AND EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

The Organization of Professional Employees in the Department of Agriculture
distributed over 30,000 questionnaires in the spring of 1988 to develop a
data base on potential beneficiaries of Civil Service retirement credit for
prior service in Cooperative Federal-State Agricultural Programs.
Questionnaires were sent to:

1. Federal employees identified as potential beneficiaries in a 1984
OPEDA questionnaire sent to the OPEDA membership.

2. Members of the National Association of Federal-State Employees.

3. Extension Specialists on Land Grant University Campuses and
Agricultural Research Centers as listed in the 1986-87 Directory of
Professional Workers in State Agricultural Experiment Stations and
Other Cooperating State Institutions.

4. State and county offices of State Cooperative Extension Services
and the U.S. Department of Agriculture.

5. Research laboratories of the Agricultural Research Service and
Technical Centers of the Soil Conservation Service.

6. Managers in the U.S. Department of Agriculture in the Washington
Area at the level of Section Leader or higher.

7. Federal employees that were listed as additional potential
beneficiaries by those returning survey forms.

Over 1,250 potential beneficiaries were identified from the 1,400
questionnaires that were received from the nationwide mailing. Based on
the response to and comments supplied on the questionnaire, it was
estimated that we had identified approximately one-half of the potential
beneficiaries. The estimated number of potential beneficiaries of 2,500 in
1988 was adjusted downward to 1,875 in 1991, and to 1,800 in 1993 as a
result of deaths and additional information.

Estimates of the number of employees that would retire, expenditures, and
direct outlays from the Civil Service Retirement Fund were based upon
information provided by potential beneficiaries. Estimates of the
reductions in appropriated funds were based on 160 percent of salaries of
employees. The additional 60 percent includes health and retirement
benefits and the cost of secretarial and clerical support, travel,
computers, laboratory and related expense, training, supplies, and other
related expenses.

Estimates of the number of employees that would retire in each year are
adjusted using actuarial tables. The number of employees retiring was
adjusted to account for the potential beneficiaries that are likely to
retire whether or not the legislation for extended credit is enacted.

6:4
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UNITED STATES
OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT

WASHINGTON. D.C. 20415

OCT 2 5 19

Honorable John Glenn
Chairman
Committee on Governmental Affairs
United States Senate
Washington, DC 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

I am writing to respond to several questions you raised during my
testimony at your October 19, 1993, hearing on S. 1535, the
"Federal Workforce Restructuring Act of 1993."

With regard to the ratio of supervisors to employees at the
Office of Personnel Management, the ratio for Fiscal Year 1992
was one supervisor to 8.45 employees (1:8.45). The Government-
wide ratio for FY 1992 was 1:7.86. I understand that the
statistics for Fiscal Year 1993 will be available by January.

Our goal at the Office of Personnel Management is to modify this
ratio significantly in FY 94 and FY 95. I have confidence that
these goals are attainable with the anticipated use of the
voluntary separation incentive authority, the voluntary early
retirement authority, and other management tools available to
this and other agencies. We will be formulating specific numeric
goals for submission to the Office of Management and Budget as
part of its request to agencies to provide such data by December
1, 1993.

You also asked me to provide data on what attrition rates have
been by grade level in the Government over a period of years.
The attached data shows separations by grade for full-time
permanent General Schedule employees and excludes the separation
of employees who transferred to other Federal agencies. The
period covered is FY 1988 through FY 1992.

I trust this information will be helpful to the Committee as you
continue your consideration of S. 1535. Please let me know if I
may provide you with any additional information you may need.

Sincerely,

491;t444.4&
James B. King

40, Director

Enclosures
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Separations by Grade
Full:time Permanent. General Schedule & Identical

Excluding Transfers
Executive Branch

Grade Separations

FY 1992

Rate

12.5
13.6
11.4

1

2
3

9

165
2 -00

4 8.130 6.5
5 10,950 6.5

6 5,232 5.1
7 7,139 5.0
6 1.339 4.1
9 6.440 4.3
10 1,059 3.6

11 7,172 3.6
12 6,812 3.0
13 4.399 3.0
14 2,517 3.0
15 1,460 3.8

All 65,349 4.5

Excludes all placement in nonray status actions.

Excludes seasonal/on-call and student trainees.
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Separations by Grade
Full-time Permanent General Schedule & Identical

Excluding Transfers
Executive Branch

Grade SeParatioma

FY 1991

Bate

1 13 17.3

2 265 17.2

3 2,732 12.3

4 10,039 9.3

5 12,615 7.3

6 5,795 5.9

7 8,910 6.3

8 1,484 4.6

9 8,227 5.4

10 1,284 4.5

11 9,376 4.8

12 8,37 4.2

13 5,467 3.9

14 3,029 3.9

15 1,750 4.7

All 79,968 5.6

Excludes all placement in nonpay actions.

Excludes seasonal /on -call and student trainees.
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Separations by Grade
Full-time Permanent General Schedule & Similar

Excluding Transfers
Executive Branch

Grade Separations

FY 1990

Bate

1

2
3
4

5

36
434

3.763
13,158
15,268

26.9
20.1
14.5

11.3
8.8

6 6,944 7.2
7 9,884 7.1
8 1,755 5.7
9 8,817 5.8
1V 1,513 5.4

11 9,643 5.0
12 9,364 4.6
13 6,028 4.5
14 3,445 4.7
15 1 ,41 5.3

16 29 5.8
17 3 5.7
18 2 6.9

Unsp 1 -

All 91,928 6.6

Excludes all placement in nonpay actions.

Excludes seasonal/on-call and student trainees.
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Separations by Grade
Full-time Permanent General Schedule & Similar

Excluding Transfers
Executive Branch

Grade. Separations

FY 1989

Bate

1 31 17.7

2 641 24.0

3 5,113 16.9

4 15,479 12.5

5 17,947 10.0

6 7,353 7.9

7 10,858 7.8

8 1,855 6.1

9 9,714 6.4

10 1,664 6.0

11 10,056 5.4

12 9,555 4.9

13 5,885 4.6

14 3,349 4.9

15 1,983 F.0

16 43 8.1

17 9 15.5

18 8 26.7

Unsp 15

All 101,558 7.3

Excludes all placement in nonpey status actions.

Excludes seasonal/on-call and student trainees.
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Source: Central Personnel Data File

Coverage Transaction File
Executive Branch -M Agencies except the U.S. Postal Service, Postal Rate Commission.
Central Intelligence Agency, National Security Agency. Federal Bureau of Investigation,
Tennessee Valley Authority, White House Office, Office of the Vice President, Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System, and Defense Intelligence Agency

Legislative Branch - Includes only the Government Printing Office, U.S. Tax Court, and
selected commissions

Judicial Branch - Excluded

Other Exclusions - Nonappropriated fund employees In Defense activities, Commis.
sioned Corps employees, and Foreign Nationals employed outside of the U.S. or its
territories
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR ARAKA

Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to support S. 1585, the Federal Workforce Restruc-
turing Act of 1993. On behalf of the over thirty-nine thousand Federal employees
in the State of Hawaii, I stand ready to work with you and members of this Com-
mittee to pass this important bill

The Administration is streamlining the Federal Government to work better and
costs less. In doing so, the Administration seeks to reduce the Federal workforce by
252,000 employees. Although I question the exact number of employees that need
to be released, I support the Administration's proposal to provide incentives for em-
ployees to alleviate the pain of separation.

The Federal Workforce Restructuring Act provides training assistance to Federal
employees. As a result of this bill, employees will be able to obtain the skills nec-
essary to meet the new requirements a their jobs.

Mr. Chairman, many Federal employees have delayed their scheduled retirement
because of the current state of the economy. Their decision to do so, however, has
affected Federal agencies and younger employees seeking advancement on the civil
service ladder. This bill provides an incentive to those at or near retirement to leave
government service in order to provide opportunities to others. Hopefully, it will
eliminate the need for involuntary separations.

I look forward to the testimory of our witnesses here today. I am especially inter-
ested in learning the results of the Department of Defense's efforts to implement
its Separation Pay Program and any recommendations they may have for our other
Federal agencies.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF G. JERRY SHAW

Good morning Chairman Glenn. My name is Jerry Shaw. I am the General Coun-
sel to the Senior Executives Association. SEA appreciates the opportunity to appear
and testify before you today on the Federal Workforce Restructuring Act of 1993.
We commend you for your leadership on this and other matters of concern to Fed-
eral employees.

We have examined the provisions of the Act, and have some suggestions. Some
in Congress and the public question the necessity for buy out provisions in order
to downsize the government. They see this proposal as a new and expensive benefit,
and believe that the best way to proceed is to merely conduct reductions in force
in order to fire the people who are excess.

As you and I know, it is not as easy as all that. Agencies estimate that to run
a reduction in force under law, and remove employees who are excess, costs on aver-
age $25,000 per employee. Thus, the payment of a voluntary separation incentive
makes good economic sense. For essentially no coat, much disruption to our govern-
ment agencies and the citizens they serve is avoided.

In addition, downsizing in the private sector is, in fact, much more expensive than
in the public sector. Analysis of recent studies by Charles Brown, Professor, Univer-
sity of Idichigan, which he prepared in September of 19931 shows that in the private
sector between the years of 1962 and 1992 of the substantial number of special early
retirement offers studied, employees accepted approximately 50 percent and rejected
approximately 50 percent. On average, the mean offer which was accepted by em-
ployees receiving cash buy out offers was a separation incentive of $38,000 cash
and $6,600 in additional pension benefits. Of the approximately 50 percent va..o rt-
jected the offers (in some cases there were multiple offers), the mean offer rejected
by those receiving cash buy out offers was $29,000 cash and a $3,900 additional
pension benefit. The Government is offering to its employees a maximum of $25,000
in a voluntary separation incentive, and no additional retirement incentive. We un-
derstand that the average incentive paid out to Department of Defense employees
under their program has been less than $20,000.

Professor Brown's report makes some very interesting points. In the private sec-
tor, those who accept the incentive offers are (a) more likely to be married than
those who reject them; (b) twice as likely to report that a health condition limits
their work; (c) twice as likely to report that they would accept a hypothetical alter-
native job; and (d) finally, those who accept the offers are more likely to be risk tol-
erant individuals. He reports that half or more of those who accepted the incentive
offers returned to work in other companies. However, many had to endure reduced
work weeks and pay.

Thus, in the private sector the mean was a higher cash payment than that offered
by the government, and an increased pension benefit where the government has of-
fered none. If government employees are similar to private sector employees, and
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we believe they are, then approximately half of those accepting the offer will be
seeking active full time work. We, therefore, urge that this bill require a job
outplacement program be established in each agency for those who accept the offer,
but are seeking other employment, so that they do not wind up with a reduction
in working hours and compensation because of having left their current positions.
We also urge that there be an educational effort to assist employees with financial
planning. Many Federal employees are unskilled in such matters, and classes on fi-
nancial planning, budgeting, etc., are an absolutely essential part of helping these
employees transition. Finally, we do not believe that a 90-day window is sufficient
time for employees to make a rational decision. If they are provided with the finan-
cial planning and, thus, the ability to make valid judgments on what is best for
their families, they should also be given a reasonable time to explore private sector
job opportunities if they plan to continue in the workforce. A 90-day time period is
not sufficient to evaluate the offers, get financial advice, and seek other employment
if desired. We suggest that the agencies provide up to a 6-month window of oppor-
tunity for employees rather than 90 days.

We would like to propose an alternative to the cash buy out that we think would
assist the Administration and Congress in accomplishing the objective of rightsizing
the government, especially in the mid and senior level grades. Our informal polling
of GS -14's, 15's and SESers leads us to conclude that the cash buy out offer will
not motivate many long service employees into either taking early or optional retire-
ment, assuming they are eligible. Of course, those who are not eligible would be re-
ceiving severance pay, and thus, no buy out dollars. On the other hand, the one ben-
efit that these employees nearly uniformly indicated would incentivize their early
retirement was elimination of the 2 percent reduction in annuity for each year
under age 55.

To eliminate the 2 percent reduction would be more costly than the cash buy out,
and would require a change in the retirement law, rather than the use of the agen-
cy's discretionary funds. Because of those objections, we propose an alternative
which would have no increased net costs to the agencies, but would be more bene-
ficial to the employees and have the affect of eliminating at least part of the annuity
reduction.

Specifically, we propose that the buy out amount be paid by the agency into the
employee's CSRS retirement account or their FERS Thrift account. Currently, em-
ployees under CSRS are authorized to make voluntary contributions to the retire-
ment fund, and to receive in return for those contributions either an extra annuity
amount, or a return of the contribution at some point prior to retirement with inter-
est based on the average yield of new investments purchased by the retirement fund
during the previous fiscal year. (See 5 U.S.0 *8343, and FPM Supplement 830-1,
July 27, 1990.) If this bill provided that the agency make the deposit to the CSRS
or FERS Thrift account rather than to the employee, it would not be immediately
taxable to the employee, but would be taxable when withdrawn or when taken as
an addition of their annuity. As with the voluntary contribution amount, there
should be no annual COLA adjustment to the additional annuity amount. (See FPM
Supplement 830-1, chapter 31, part 31A3, subparagraph B.2. The effect of this
would be for an employee at age 52 to have eliminated a substantial amount of the
2 percent reduction in their annuity that they would take for early retirement.
Younger employees would still have a substantial reduction, but less than the
amount of reduction that they would take under normal circumstances. In addition,
the employee should be allowed to withdraw the agencies additional contribution
(just as they can voluntary contributions)with interest earned at any time prior
to receiving an annuity. The amount of the contribution and interest received would
then be fully taxable to the employee at that time.

We believe that this would be a beneficial option for many employees, and would
have the effect of encouraging many more to consider accepting a voluntary separa-
tion incentive if presented in this form.

We note that since the agencies will be making a contribution of 9 percent of em-
ployees payroll under this bill to the Civil Service Retirement Fund, then it should
not be a problem to add the voluntary separation incentive to that 9 percent for de-
posit to the employees' account.

We commend the Administration on their proposals to amend the training act and
eliminate other training restrictions. We wholeheartedly support the proposed
changes.

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this statement. I would be happy to an-
wer any questions you might have.
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U.S. OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT
Washington, DC, November 4, 1993.

Hon. JOHN GLENN
Chairman, Committee on Governmental Affairs, U.S. Senate,
Washington, DC.

DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: I appreciated very much the opportunity to appear before
your Committee on October 19, 1993, to discuss S. 1535, the Federal Workforce Re-
structuring Act of 1993. The Office of Management and Budget and the Office of
Personnel Management have jointly prepared the enclosed responses to questions
for the record submitted to our two agencies following the hearing.

If any additional information is needed, please do not hesitate to let me know.
Sincerely,

Enclosures

JAMES B. KING
Director.

ENCLOSURE I

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY SENATOR GLENN

Question 1. Does the Administration support expedited congressional action on
H.R. 2876, the so-called NASA buy-out bill? If not, why not?

Answer. The Administration has requested expedited congressional action on S.
1535 and M.R. 3345, which provide buyout authority for all executive branch agen-
cies. Since NASA is not the sole agency in urgent need of the buyout tool, we believe
the emphasis should be on the Governmentwide bill rather than on individual agen-
cy authorities.

Question 2. As you know, H.R. 2876 has been held up in Congress due to budg-
etary concerns. Do you expect these same budgetary concerns to stall S. 1535?

Answer. The Office of Management and Budget has determined that enactment
of S. 1535 would not require a sequester under the Budget Enforcement Act. There-
fore, we hope budgetary concern-. will not stall S. 1535.

ENCLOSURE 2

QUESTIONS SUBMII hD BY SENATOR PRYOR

Question 1. Since agency heads have the discretion to offer the separation pay in-
centives to employees who retire or resign, are there certain categories of employees
who should be exempted from being eligible for the buyouts? Have you identified
shortage/surplus categories?

Answer. The intent of the bill is to give agency heads maximum flexibility to de-
sign separation incentive programs that meet their downsizing goals. They would
decide whether certain categories of positions are surplus, such as supervisors.
Agencies also would identify which positions are critical to accomplishing the agency
mission and thus should not be eligible for incentives. These categories of positions
would vary by agency.

Employees in positions that are hard to fill could be a category agencies exempt
from offers. The Administration does not wish to exempt all employees in shortage
categories because an agency's need for such workers could change as the agency
changes the way it operates, reorganizes, or otherwise implements National Per-
formance Review (NPR) recommendations.

Question 2. Agency heads can hold over employees who elect the separation incen-
tives for up to 2 years. Will there be limits on the number of people allowed to stay
on?

Answer. Each agency head would decide this. We do not foresee agencies making
widespread use of this delayed separation provision because it would hamper their
ability to meet the steep budget reductions expected in fiscal year 1995.

Question 3. Separation incentives would be offered at the discretion of the agency
head during a 90 day window which would be set by the agency. Do you foresee
agencies running more than one ninety day window? How would that work?

Answer. An agency may have different window periods for different components,
locations, grade levels, etc. However, each individual employee will have only a sin-
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gle window during which he cr she has the opportunity to accept an offer of a sepa-ration incentive. -
Question 4. Over the last 5 years,-how much money has the Government spenton . With the Government's new emphasis on training, how much do you

estimate the departments and agencies will spend on training over the next 5 years?
Answer. For the period 1988-1992, the Government spent $3,704.4 million on

training. The breakdown by year is as follows (expressed in millions)
1988: 715.0
1989: 95.1
1990: 735.4
1991: 946.0
1992: 713.3

Given the current climate, 5-year projections are tenuous. However, there areforces to suggest that the total amount of expenditures for the 5-year period 19931997 will not change dramatically from the 1988-1992 figures. Growth factors in-clude inflation, worker retraining costs, an expanded definition of the purpose oftraining, and greater Administration emphasis on developing a highly skilled, serv-
ice-oriented workforce. Forces working against an increase would include reductions
in agency budgets, cost-cutting recommendations in the NPR report, and expanded
use of more cost-effective means of training, such as mentoring, apprenticeships,and "distance learning," which is a generic term covering such techniques as cor-respondence courses and interactive television.

Question 5. The legislation would remove the current restrictions on the use of
private sector training sources. How much of the training budget do you estimatewill be spent on private sector trainers?

Answer. In 1992, non-Government training accounted for 47 percent of trainingexpenditures. If the current restrictions are lifted, we can expect some modest in-
crease in the proportion of non-Government to Government training expenditures,
although agencies will probably still be inclined to favor in-house trainmg. Under
current training regulations, an agency may select from among Government and
non-Government training sources based upon their adequaq (quality of instruction,
materials, etc.) and reasonableness (cost, location, etc.). It is each agency's respon-
sibility to determine which Source will best meet these criteria. Timm consider-
ations will continue to shape decisions on the selection of training sources.

Question 6. Employees are often attracted to Federal employment because of the
Federal training opportunities, especially for the nursing and professional occupa-
tions. In a 1990 study, GAO found many examples of the "revolving door syndrome"
where employees leave for better jobs after receiving valuable hands-on and formaltraining. If we invest more money in worker training, what changes do we need to
make to ensure we get a return on our training dollars?

Answer. With the elimination of the distinction between Government and non-
Government training, agencies will be able to use the "continued service agreement"
for both categories of training, thereby offering greater protection for investments
of time and money in worker training.

Under existing regulations, an employee attending a non-Government trainingprogram that is 80 hours (or longer) is required to agree in writing to continue in
Government service for a designated period of time upon completion of the training.
The "continued service agreement" under the proposed amendments will apply toboth Government training and non-Government training, but each agency will es-tablish its own policy on the length of training that will require use of an agree-ment.

As we move to empower the Federal worker, we believe the opportunities for
training and development will serve as a strong incentive for the worker to remain
with the Government, especially if the employee sees that additional growth oppor-tunities will result.

Question 7. Some employees who may be eligible for a buyout may not want to
retire because they would lose their health insurance. Employees must participatein the Federal Employees Health Benefits Program 5 years before retiring in order
to continue coverage. To encourage employees to leave, will OPM be more liberalin waiving exceptions to this requirement?

Answer. The FEHB statute gives OPM authority to waive the 5-year participation
requirement for continuing health benefits coverage into retirement when it would
be "against equity and good conscience" not to do so. We wi:1 continue to exercise
the waiver authority and review the program as necessary.

Question 8. It is often asserted that early retirements save money over RIFe. How
much money is saved per early retirement with the incentive vs. a RIF'd employeeover a five-year period?
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Answer. We estimate that an agency would save $63,600 over 6 years by offering
voluntary early retirement and a voluntary separation incentive to an employee in-
stead of involuntarily separating an employee through reduction in force (RIF) pro-
cedures.

Question 9. While the NPR re rt identifies positions which are overstaffed, have
you found evidence of understaffing? If so, where?

A. Individual agencies are in the best position to identify understaffing of their
programs. We have not made a study of understaffing.

Question 10. The Federal Government spent $90 billion on service contracts in
1989 and plans to spend $105 billion in fiscal year 1993. As agency budgets are cut
and the Federal work force is reduced, what are your projections for how much the
Federal Government will spend on service contracting for the next 5 years?

Answer. The Federal Government spent $88.5 billion on service contracts in Fiscal
Year 1989, $90.6 billion in fiscal year 1990, $103 billion in fiscal year 1991, and
$105 billion in fiscal year 1992. The projected staffing decreases are expected to
come from reduced management layers, consolidation of field offices, and efficiencies
from implementing NPR s recommendations on procurement, personnel, and pro-
gram reengineering. These are not areas where service contracts would become a
substitute for performance by Government personnel. We have not yet developed
out-year projections for service contracts but would expect, with DOD and other
downsizing, an overall decrease to occur in the number and value of service con-
tracts.

Question 11. I am concerned that reducing Federal employees, without capping
service contracts, will increase the cost of fulfilling the government's mission. Would
you support a proposal to cap service contracting at this year's level to ensure we
obtain true efficiency?

Answer. Agencies have already been directed to reduce administrative costs and
to take further spending reductions in order to stay within the spending caps. In
order to achieve the needed savings, agencies should be encouraged to either con-
tract but or to perform functions with Government personnel depending on the total
cost to the Government for meeting the mission requirement. Capping contract dol-
lars at current levels, without regard to either inflation or the competitive cost of
services could lead to inefficiencies and would severely limit an agency's ability to
respond to changing conditions and requirements.

Question 12. I am concerned that we may end up rehiring employees who took
the retirement or resignation incentives as consultants. S. 1535 requires employees
to repay the separation incentives if reemployed by the Government within 5 years.
I am interested in extending this repayment provision to retirees or former employ-
ees who attempt to return as consultants. What is your view on this change?

Answer. Buyout recipients who are appointed as consultants under 5 U.S.C. 3109
would be subject to the repayment requirements in the same fashion as any other
employees.

Those who are employed by firma which provide consulting services to the Gov-
ernment would not be covered by the repayment provisions. We do not believe that
it is reasonable or feasible to attempt to regulate the full range of post-employment
options available to the broad spectrum of buyout recipients. We do believe that the
bar against immediate reemployment in the Federal service is adequate to protect
the Government against collusive separations.

ENCLOSURE 3

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY SENATOR ROTH

Question 1. The Congressional Budget Office testified before the House Sub-
committee on Compensation and Employee Benefits on October 19, lii93 and pro-
vided the following information.

CBO estimates that of the 252,000 downsizing effort government-wide, 160,000
Department of Defense employees will be leaving during the 1994-1999 fiscal years.
This is a significant number of people toward reaching the announced goal. Assum-
ing, consistent with the President's budget, that a reduction of about 10,000 will be
accomplished in 1993.

Consequently, this means that civilian agencies would have to make only 82,000
reductions to meet the goal of 252,000 by 1999. Based on average attrition rates,
couldn't this 82,000 figure be attained over the next 6 years without any incen-
tive payment? Would a hiring freeze assist in accomplishing the 82,000 goal?

Answer. (The answer to this question will follow shortly)
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Question 2. The bill mandates a 9 percent intragovernmental transfer of appro-
priated funds to the Civil Service Retirement fund by the agency paying tha incen-
tive for each employee who retires early. This would be a permanent change in law
affecting any future early retirees after the incentive program ends.

Why is the 9 percent transfer only required for persons retiring under the Civil
Service Retiremen:. System (CSRS), and not for persons retiring under the Federal
Employees Retirement System (PERS)?

Given that agencies would be required to only transfer the 9 percent for CSRS
employees, it is conceivable that FEES employees may be favored when decisions
are made on who would not be as costly to the agencies. Why, then, does the bill
include this obvious bias for offering incentives?

Answer. The 9 percent trans; T payment for early retirements is an actuarial esti-
mate of the net revenue lost from employee contributions when a CSRS employee
retires early. CSRS employees generally contribute 7 percent of salary for retire-
ment and FERS employees contribute only 0.8 percent. Thus, there is no net loss
of employee contribution revenue in an early FEES retirement. Inasmuch as incen-
tive offerings must be based on components, geographic areas, and/or occupations,
etc., we do not believe the transfer differential could introduce any bias in agency
decisions.

Question 3. Given the bill's current language on repayment of the incentive
should the employee return to the executive branch within 6 years, what rights does
the Federal Government retain to require this payback?

What administrative system and enforcement mechanism will be put in place to
assure the government of its payback rights?

What amendment would be needed to make absolutely clear that the U.S. has
these payback rights?

Answer. The bill's language requiring repayment of the full amount of the incen-
tive if the employee is appointed in the executive branch within 5 years is itself suf-
ficient to create a debt to the Government. Since the bill specifically provides for
collection of the full amount, the Government would be entitled to collect that
amount.

The Debt Collection Act of 1982 (5 U.S.C. 5514) and OPM's implementing regula-
tions (6 CFR Part 550, Subpart K) already provide such a mechanism. After admin-
istrative due process (i.e., written notice and opportunity for hearing), the employing
agency may collect the debt by salary offset without the employee's consent.

We believe the Government's basic authority under 5 U.S.C. 5514 and the separa-
tion incentive legislation is clear. OPM's regulations implementing the separation
incentive legislation will specifically remind agencies of their obligation to provide
the notice required under 6 U.S.C. 5514 and 5 CFR Part 550 before appointing any-
one subject to the repayment provision.

Sec. (a) The President or his designee shall take such action as he deter-
mines necessary to ensure that employment in the Executive branch is reduced by
at least one full-time equivalent for each two voluntary separation incentive pay-
ments paid under section 3 of this Act.

(b) The President or his designee shall report to Congress on the implementation
of this section.

Sec. (a) The President or his designee shall take such action as he deter-
mines necessary to ensure that employment in the Executive branch is reduced by
at least two full-time equivalents for each three voluntary separation incentive pay-
ments paid under section 3 of this Act.

(b) The President or his designee shall report to Congress on the implementation
of this section.

Sec. . (a) The President or his designee shall take such action as he deter-
mines necessary to ensure that, by September 30, 1995, employment in the Execu-
tive branch is reduced by at least one full-time equivalent for each voluntary separa-
tion incentive payment paid under section 3 of this Act.

(b) The President or his designee shall report to Congress on the implementation
of this section.
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